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1                         Tuesday Morning Session,

2                         April 27, 2021.

3                         - - -

4             THE EXAMINER:  Let's go on the record.

5 Public Utilities Commission of Ohio has assigned for

6 hearing at this time and place Case No.

7 18-1734-EL-CSS captioned Russell Enyart versus Ohio

8 Edison Company.  My name is Patricia Schabo, and I'm

9 the Attorney Examiner assigned by the Commission to

10 hear this case.

11             We'll begin with appearances of counsel,

12 and I'll start with the Complainant.

13             MR. WHITT:  On behalf of the Complainant

14 Mr. Enyart, the law firm of Whitt, Sturtevant, LLP,

15 Mark Whitt and Lucas Fykes, 88 East Broad Street,

16 Suite 1590, Columbus, Ohio, 43215.

17             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.

18             And for Ohio Edison.

19             MR. DORINGO:  Good morning, your Honor,

20 on behalf of Ohio Edison, Christine Watchorn,

21 FirstEnergy Service Company, 100 East Broad Street,

22 Suite 2225, Columbus, Ohio, 43215, and with me this

23 morning, Ryan Doringo, Jones Day, Northpoint 901

24 Lakeside Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, 44114.

25             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.
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1             And we'll just take a moment to make some

2 preliminary remarks.  First, due to the Covid 19

3 emergency that remains in effect, pursuant to

4 Executive Order 2020-01D issued by Governor Mike

5 DeWine in March 2020, this hearing is being held by a

6 Webex which enables parties to participate by video

7 conference and phone numbers of the public to access

8 the hearing by telephone or video over the Internet.

9             Next, if counsel or witnesses experience

10 any technical difficulties during the hearing, please

11 immediately contact me by phone or e-mail or you can

12 contact the event host by calling 614-466-6843 or via

13 the Webex Chat function.  Please do be aware that

14 chats are recorded but are not private and are not

15 part of the public record.

16             Again, I'll just reiterate that I often

17 switch my audio to my phone, so that Webex Chat

18 feature is your best option unless Webex has kicked

19 you out completely in which we will have noticed and

20 we will stop the proceeding until we can get you back

21 on.

22             For those of you who may be watching or

23 listening as an attendee, including witnesses as they

24 wait to testify, while you can observe the hearing,

25 your microphones are muted.
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1             In most respects, as we discussed, the

2 virtual hearing will discuss in much the same fashion

3 as an in person hearing before the Commission;

4 however, due to the remote nature, there are a few

5 new basics.  So first and foremost, to avoid

6 unnecessary background noise, please keep your

7 microphones on mute unless you are speaking or will

8 need to be able to interject quickly such as on

9 raising objections during cross-examination.

10             There will be plenty of "Mr. or Ms., your

11 microphone is on mute" in the transcript.  It's all

12 good.  Do your best.  Counsel should leave their

13 cameras on at all times.  Witnesses, when they are

14 testifying, will need to turn on their camera and

15 microphone when promoted to the Panelist role.

16             Please be mindful of our court reporter.

17 Speak clearly and at a reasonable pace so that she

18 can accurately transcribe the record.  Do your best

19 to avoid speaking over each other by taking proactive

20 steps by intentionally allowing for pause at the end

21 of questions or generally just slowing down in order

22 to allow for connectivity lags and objections.

23             During testimony, witnesses should only

24 have access to those documents that they would have

25 if they were physically sitting in the witness stand.
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1 There should be no attempts to communicate through

2 any means with anyone privately during a witness'

3 testimony with that witness.

4             Exhibits that are ultimately admitted

5 into the record that were not previously docketed

6 with the witness should be e-mailed by the next day

7 to the court reporter.  Again, I e-mailed you the

8 court reporter's e-mail address, but for the record

9 it is KSpencer@aando.com.

10             Do counsel have any questions about these

11 comments?

12             MR. WHITT:  (Shakes head.)

13             MR. DORINGO:  (Shakes head.)

14             THE EXAMINER:  I see three nodding heads

15 which is perfect.  Thank you.  I'm sorry, shaking

16 heads, not nodding.

17             Mr. Whitt, are you ready to proceed?

18             MR. WHITT:  Yes, your Honor.  And I'd

19 like to start by introducing the audio recordings

20 that we discussed this morning off the record.  The

21 recordings we believe will help the Bench understand

22 the events that led up to this dispute, and we think

23 it makes sense for everyone including the witnesses

24 to be able to hear the recordings before the

25 witnesses are asked questions about those
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1 conversations.

2             So with that, I would like to start with

3 the call by Mr. Enyart to the Company on

4 January 26th, 2018.

5             MR. DORINGO:  Your Honor, may I be heard

6 for just one moment?

7             THE EXAMINER:  You may, but I'm going

8 to -- I'm going to ask Mr. Whitt just a little bit

9 more information, and then I'll turn the floor over

10 to you.

11             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.

12             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt, you have

13 provided four audio recordings.  They are marked with

14 several numbers.  We've all been talking about the

15 last digits from the first set of numbers that are a

16 bunch of zeros.  Of the four recordings, could you

17 tell me which one I should be looking at for the

18 January 26th, 2018 recording.

19             MR. WHITT:  Yes, your Honor.  The

20 particular file, it begins with a series of zeros and

21 ends with an 8.  And depending on your listening

22 device, it should indicate a time stamp of 15 minutes

23 and 29 seconds.

24             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.

25             MR. WHITT:  And I'll have similar
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1 descriptions for the other calls, but I thought I

2 would just take them one at a time.  And if we have

3 identified the recording, I think we can play it

4 subject obviously to opposing counsel's questions or

5 objections.

6             THE EXAMINER:  I would like to go ahead

7 and have you mark this recording as a specific

8 Exhibit, if you could tell me what number are you on.

9 You're on No. 9?

10             MR. WHITT:  Actually, No. 8.  Let me go

11 back a moment.  All of the recordings were produced

12 by the Company in response to Mr. Enyart's first set

13 of discovery.

14             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.

15             MR. WHITT:  And we have marked those

16 responses as Complainant Exhibit 2.  And included in

17 the responses are documents Bate stamped by the

18 Company as OE, a series of zeros ending in 1 through

19 11.

20             THE EXAMINER:  Yes.

21             MR. WHITT:  Within that production, there

22 is a document Bate stamped ending in 8 which

23 indicates that a file is being produced in native

24 format, and that file is the one that I just

25 identified.
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1             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Well, for a clear

2 record, I will be marking this audio recording as

3 Complainant Exhibit 2A.

4             MR. WHITT:  Very well.

5             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

6             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Doringo, you wanted to

7 be heard?

8             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, thank you, your Honor.

9 A couple of things.  I'll start with maybe the easier

10 one, the Complainant Exhibit 2A that we're now

11 marking this call as, I just wanted to point out that

12 the responses that Mr. Whitt or Mr. Enyart has marked

13 as Complainant Exhibit 2 are not the final responses

14 to this set of discovery requests.  We served

15 Supplemental and Amended Discovery Requests following

16 the service of what is marked as Exhibit 2 by the

17 Complainant.

18             And I previously had sent those out

19 yesterday, your Honor, marked as Ohio Edison Exhibit

20 10.  And I'm not sure all of these -- I'm not sure if

21 the entirety of Exhibit 2 needs to come into the

22 record or just the call transcripts -- or the call

23 recordings that are being attached to the Exhibit,

24 but to the extent that Exhibit 2 would come into the

25 record with our responses, as they are here, we also
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1 ask that Exhibit 10, Ohio Edison Exhibit 10, be

2 introduced as well to make the record accurate.  So

3 that's point 1.

4             I don't know if you would like me to stop

5 there or go on to point 2.

6             THE EXAMINER:  Yes, give me just a second

7 to find Exhibit 10 which I do have somewhere.  Cindy,

8 we're going to go off the record for just 20 seconds

9 here.

10             (Off the record.)

11             THE EXAMINER:  We are going to go back

12 on.  Mr. Doringo, are you saying that what has been

13 premarked as Complainant Exhibit 2 and premarked as

14 OE Exhibit 10, are they not identical, although their

15 front pages are identical?

16             MR. DORINGO:  They're not identical, your

17 Honor, and I would point out in the Ohio Edison

18 Exhibit 10, you can see Amended and Supplemental

19 Responses noted in the caption of the front page.

20 They differ, frankly, in material ways that are

21 important to this record.  And so we just wanted to

22 make sure that if 2 comes in, that 10 also comes in,

23 even though I'm not sure it wouldn't just be easier

24 to admit the call recordings or other documents the

25 Complainant intends to subsequently introduce.
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1             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  I understand what

2 you're saying now.  We can go about it in one of

3 several ways.  As we just did with the audio

4 recording and as I have done in previous cases, the

5 entire document doesn't have to come in, but it's

6 still referenced as an Exhibit so that we're all

7 talking about the same thing.

8             And if there are portions that need to be

9 brought in, we can say as an example, your Exhibit 2F

10 would be Interrogatory 12 and its response.

11 Mr. Whitt has dropped off, so we are going to go off

12 the record for just a moment.

13             (Off the record.)

14             (Record read.)

15             THE EXAMINER:  We're back on the record.

16 We just had a few technical issues that I believe we

17 have ironed out fingers crossed.  We now have

18 everybody back on.  Court reporter just very kindly

19 reminded me what I was talking about when we went off

20 the record which was marking different parts of a

21 larger exhibit, to move to admit those parts as

22 opposed to the whole.  Do counsel have any questions

23 about that idea?

24             MR. DORINGO:  No, your Honor, that makes

25 sense to me.  I guess we can also revisit when we
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1 actually move to admit the things into the record so

2 we're all on the same page.

3             THE EXAMINER:  Yes, but I do understand

4 what you're saying now, if Complainant's Exhibit 2

5 comes in, you would like Company Exhibit 10 as well.

6 As I said, we'll get there.

7             So we're on Exhibit 2A which is the audio

8 recording of January the 26th, 2018.  You had

9 another -- You had a list of things you wanted to

10 talk about, Mr. Doringo, and I think we just hit

11 number one.

12             MR. DORINGO:  You're right, your Honor,

13 but it's only a two point list, so we're rounding

14 third already.  The other issue I wanted to raise is

15 one we already discussed off the record, but Ohio

16 Edison objects to this recording that's marked as 2A

17 and any other recordings that are going to be played

18 today and that were premarked -- or pre-identified by

19 the Complainant on the basis that they contain

20 hearsay from Mr. Enyart in his statements made during

21 those calls.

22             Hearsay is, of course, a statement other

23 than one made by the declarant while testifying at

24 hearing under Rule 801, and these calls all include

25 statements that were made long ago by Mr. Enyart that
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1 are just definitional hearsay.

2             And also included in these statements are

3 Mr. Enyart as double hearsay where Mr. Enyart repeats

4 things that he heard from folks who won't even be

5 testifying today.  On that ground, I just wanted to

6 lay out that we do have several objections that I

7 expect to come up all on hearsay grounds to these

8 call recordings, though the Company, Ohio Edison,

9 does at least stipulate to the authenticity of these

10 recordings, but it does not speak to the

11 admissibility of questions I've raised.  Thank you.

12             THE EXAMINER:  Is your objection to the

13 recording as a whole first and then portions of it

14 second, or clear that up for me, please.

15             MR. DORINGO:  My objection is to any

16 statements by Mr. Enyart that are offered per the

17 truth of the matter asserted in those statements

18 which as we discussed I plan to raise specific

19 motions to strike specific portions of these calls as

20 we go through them.

21             I do not think any of them are -- any of

22 Mr. Enyart's statements on these calls are admissible

23 for their truth because they're all hearsay, but I

24 can raise the specific motions as we go through them

25 if that's how you would like to go about them.
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1             THE EXAMINER:  Let's start with the big

2 package which is your objection to the call, period.

3 And on that topic, I hand it over to you, Mr. Whitt,

4 for any response you may have.

5             MR. WHITT:  Your Honor, first of all, the

6 Commission is not strictly bound by the Rules of

7 Evidence, so the hearsay rule doesn't strictly apply

8 in Commission proceedings in any event, but the

9 statements that we are dealing with are not hearsay,

10 they are prior statements of a party.

11             It was not Mr. Enyart who recorded these

12 conversations.  The Company recorded them as it does

13 in the ordinary course of business and made these

14 statements into business records which were then

15 produced during the course of discovery.

16             The Company certainly can't claim any

17 prejudice by the introduction of call recordings that

18 the Company itself recorded.  And to the extent the

19 Company had any clarification, correction, additional

20 information to offer in order to supplement those

21 recordings, it had the opportunity to do so through

22 testimony.

23             Moreover, Mr. Enyart is available today

24 and will be available for cross-examination, and

25 counsel is certainly free to explore the basis of and
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1 extent of the witness' knowledge at the time he made

2 statements.

3             THE EXAMINER:  I'll give you one

4 response.

5             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you, your Honor.

6 The -- Nothing that Mr. Whitt just raised answers the

7 problem that these are definitionally hearsay

8 statements made by Mr. Enyart other than while he was

9 testifying.  Of course, the Commission is not bound

10 strictly by the Rules of Evidence, but I think it's

11 very common practice that they do follow them, and

12 much of them for guidance, particularly on hearsay

13 issues at hearing.

14             And the fact that these are business

15 records of the Company's does not -- of the Company,

16 of Ohio Edison, does not resolve the hearsay problem

17 where Mr. Enyart repeats things that he has heard

18 from other individuals as we'll listen to in the

19 call.  There are double hearsay problems here in some

20 instances as well.  And with that, I'll be done on

21 this issue.

22             THE EXAMINER:  As to your objection to

23 the recording as a whole, I will overrule that

24 objection now.  That does not in any way prevent you

25 from objecting to specific statements made in the
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1 audio recording, nor does it prevent you from moving

2 to strike, but I will allow at least for the audio to

3 be heard.

4             And we can take your objections or your

5 motions to strike as they come, keeping in mind,

6 please, everyone when we do play this, if you have an

7 objection or a motion, move quickly, speak loudly so

8 that our court reporter and our hearing host can work

9 together to make our record as good as it can be.

10             I believe we've marked the exhibit.  I've

11 overruled the objection to its being played in

12 general, so I believe we can start playing what has

13 been marked as Complainant's Exhibit 2A.

14             Mr. Schmidt, that is the recording with

15 several zeros and an 8 at the beginning.

16             A reminder to counsel, when the audio

17 popped up, you were automatically muted.  So whoever

18 will be making objections, make sure if you could

19 toggle your mute now so I can see if it works.

20             Mr. Doringo, can you say something?

21             MR. DORINGO:  Yes.  Can you hear me?

22             THE EXAMINER:  I can.  And you are

23 automatically unmuted again.  I would prefer if you

24 can, unless you're real quick on your draw, to just

25 stay unmuted during the playing of the audios so that
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1 you can speak quickly and be heard.

2             MR. DORINGO:  I'll do my best.  Please

3 let me know if you're getting any feedback from the

4 calls.  Thank you.

5             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.

6             MR. SCHMIDT:  If we are ready to begin

7 I'll start the playback.

8             THE EXAMINER:  Yes, please.

9             (Audio playback commences.)

10             EVA:  Hello, my name is Eva.  May I have

11 your name and service address, please.

12             MR. ENYART:  Hey, Eva, my name is

13 Russell.  My current service address is 50 Newton

14 Street.

15             (Audio playback paused.)

16             MR. SCHMIDT:  I apologize.  I paused the

17 audio.  I am hearing a lot of feedback.  So,

18 Mr. Doringo, if you could mute yourself, and

19 actually, I will just keep an eye on your window.

20 When you have an objection, just wave at the camera

21 and I'll pause the audio and that will give you time

22 to unmute yourself, if that's helpful.

23             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, I will wave and speak

24 and hopefully one of those two things will grab

25 somebody's attention.  Thank you.
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1             MR. SCHMIDT:  I'm going to go ahead and

2 resume the audio now.

3             (Audio playback commences.)

4             EVA:  I'm sorry?

5             MR. ENYART:  50 Newton Street.

6             EVA:  Okay.  What can I do for you?

7             MR. ENYART:  I have two -- I have two

8 accounts that I need to transfer to my name.

9 Currently they are in the name of I believe Sulah

10 Limited, and I am the new owner of the building and

11 need the power switched to me.

12             EVA:  Okay.  And you said --

13             MR. ENYART:  I have two account numbers

14 if you need them.

15             EVA:  Okay.  Yes, that would be helpful.

16             MR. ENYART:  Okay.  The first one is

17 110103405236.

18             EVA:  Okay.

19             MR. ENYART:  And then Eric told me it's

20 Meter 50 Newton Street UB, whatever that means.  And

21 the second Account Number is 110103407885, and on

22 this one, he said it was Meter 50 Newton Street U1.

23             EVA:  Okay.  And do you have any accounts

24 with us in your name already?

25             MR. ENYART:  Ohio Edison, I do not.
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1             EVA:  Okay.  What name would you like on

2 this bill?

3             MR. ENYART:  My name, it's Russell, first

4 name is R-U-S-S-E-L-L.

5             EVA:  Okay.

6             MR. ENYART:  Last name is Enyart,

7 E-N-Y-A-R-T-as in Tom.

8             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  And please --

9 please pause.

10             (Audio playback paused.)

11             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.  I just wanted

12 to say that I cannot see anybody's video.  So

13 regardless, when the video -- I'm sorry, when the

14 audio's being played, I cannot see anybody's camera.

15 Mr. Hearing Host, can you see video when the audio is

16 playing?

17             MR. SCHMIDT:  I cannot.  It actually

18 looks like when the multimedia file is playing, it

19 automatically is going to mute everybody and disable

20 the video while it's playing.  So my previous

21 suggestion of waving at the camera is out the window.

22             So I guess just try to be as quick on the

23 mute button as you can because we are getting a lot

24 of feedback when people are unmuted.  I'm hearing

25 echoes of everything on the recording.
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1             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  And I'll do my

2 best to be quick, and I would just -- One of the

3 reasons why I wanted to raise my objection up front

4 was so I could preserve it in case I'm a little slow

5 on the draw.  And maybe if we could just sort of

6 agree that I'm not waiving anything if I move to

7 strike after we hear something come on the record

8 rather than before, I think we can work this out.

9             THE EXAMINER:  I can agree to that as the

10 Hearing Examiner.  We don't have a jury, so the

11 record will be the record once we're done with it.

12 So if you do miss something, we can come back and

13 address it.  I can't hold you accountable for the

14 manner in which we are holding today's hearing, so

15 just do your best.  We do know at least that you can

16 unmute yourself.  Again, all we can do is our best,

17 so go ahead and resume the audio, Mr. Schmidt.

18             (Audio playback commences.)

19             EVA:  What's the Social Security number?

20             MR. ENYART:  (Social Security number).

21             EVA:  Okay.  Give me one moment.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Please stop.

23             MR. ENYART:  Appreciate your help.

24             (Audio playback paused.)

25             THE EXAMINER:  Miss Cunningham, if you
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1 could make sure that that Social Security number is

2 not part of our record, I would appreciate it.

3             COURT REPORTER:  I will redact that.

4             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Thank you.  I just

5 wanted to make sure that that isn't part of our

6 record, so thank you.  And again, you may resume.

7             (Audio playback commences.)

8             EVA:  You're welcome.  Okay, in order to

9 process your application for electric service, your

10 credit rating will be a part of the process.  May I

11 have your permission to continue?

12             MR. ENYART:  Yes.

13             EVA:  Okay.  So I have your first name as

14 R-U-S-S-E-L-L, your last name E-N-Y-A-R-T?

15             MR. ENYART:  Correct.

16             EVA:  Can you verify your Social

17 Security, please.

18             MR. ENYART:  (Social Security number).

19             EVA:  Okay, thank you.

20             MR. ENYART:  Sure.

21             EVA:  Okay.  And looks like they're --

22 they are requesting a security deposit of $194 but we

23 can --

24             MR. ENYART:  Really?

25             EVA:  But we can -- yeah.
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1             MR. ENYART:  I have really good credit.

2 That's weird.

3             EVA:  Yeah, it's probably -- it's not

4 always about -- it's not with, it's the credit

5 history with our company.

6             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

7             EVA:  If you want, we can just bill it on

8 your first bill.

9             MR. ENYART:  That's fine.

10             EVA:  Okay.

11             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

12             EVA:  And when do you want to start

13 service in your name?

14             MR. ENYART:  Today.

15             EVA:  We can do it as early as Monday.

16             MR. ENYART:  Okay.  I'll let them know.

17 You won't turn it off on them, right, because I have

18 tenants in there?

19             EVA:  Let me -- I can check that for you.

20 If it was already set for shut-off, I'm not sure, but

21 just give me one moment.  When we're finish, I can

22 let you know, okay?

23             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

24             EVA:  And you did say you were the owner

25 of the property?
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1             MR. ENYART:  Yes, I am.

2             EVA:  Okay.  And is that -- that's not --

3 is that a commercial?

4             MR. ENYART:  It is.

5             EVA:  Okay.  And for the safety of our

6 field personnel, is there a dog at the property we

7 should be aware of?

8             MR. ENYART:  Not that I know of.

9             EVA:  Okay.  And what is the primary

10 contact phone number you want on the account?

11             MR. ENYART:  916-524-9733.

12             EVA:  Okay.  Would you like to add an

13 alternate number?

14             MR. ENYART:  Sure.

15             EVA:  Okay.

16             MR. ENYART:  916-770-5121.

17             EVA:  Okay.  And would you like to add

18 someone to the account who can conduct business on

19 your behalf?

20             MR. ENYART:  Sure, John Randall.

21             EVA:  Okay.  And his relationship?

22             MR. ENYART:  He's my partner, accounting

23 guy.

24             EVA:  Okay.  And we can notify you via

25 e-mail when your --
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1             MR. ENYART:  I'm sorry.

2             EVA:  I'm sorry.

3             MR. ENYART:  What was that?

4             EVA:  We can notify you via e-mail when

5 your bill is ready so you can access it online

6 anytime.  Would you like --

7             MR. ENYART:  Sure, my e-mail?  Yes,

8 Russell.Enyart@gmail.

9             EVA:  And so do you want to receive your

10 bills via e-mail?

11             MR. ENYART:  Sure.  Can you put two

12 e-mails on?

13             EVA:  I can put one and then you can go

14 on and register the second one with the account.

15             MR. ENYART:  All right.  Sounds good.

16 All right.

17             EVA:  Okay?  All right?  Give me one

18 moment so I could set that up for you.

19             MR. ENYART:  Sounds good.

20             EVA:  And you said that was

21 R-U-S-S-E-L-L.E-N-Y-A-R-T@gmail.com?

22             MR. ENYART:  Perfect.

23             EVA:  Okay.  Okay.  And in the event that

24 we need to send you something by e-mail, where would

25 we -- where should we send it?
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1             MR. ENYART:  6284 Horseshoe, like the one

2 that's on a horse's foot, Bar Road.  The city name is

3 Loomis, that's L-O-O-M-I-S, California, 95650.

4             EVA:  Okay, great.  And I have to read

5 you our Electronic Billing User Agreement, and when

6 I'm done, you can just --

7             MR. ENYART:  Sure.

8             EVA:  -- agree or disagree.

9             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

10             EVA:  Okay.  You agree to read on our

11 Online eBill User Agreement, and this Agreement may

12 change.  The User Agreement can be found at

13 www.FirstEnergyCorp.com/eBill.  As a part of the temp

14 eBill registration program, you will continue to

15 receive a paper copy of your bill until you complete

16 your online registration.

17              Online registration must be completed

18 within 90 days of your temp eBill enrollment or you

19 will be removed from the eBill program.  And after

20 registration is completed, you will not receive a

21 paper bill; however, we will send you a monthly

22 e-mail when your bill is available for viewing

23 online.

24              Participation is optional and you can

25 cancel at any time.  And you are responsible for
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1 paying your electric bill by the due date regardless

2 of how you receive your bill.  And if there was any

3 disconnection notices, they will appear in the

4 messages section of the bill, and you will not

5 receive paper notice prior to the day of

6 disconnection.  Do you agree to the terms and

7 conditions?

8             MR. ENYART:  I do.

9             EVA:  Okay.  Okay.  I registered your

10 account.  An e-mail has been sent to you with

11 instructions on how to complete it.

12             MR. ENYART:  Sounds good.  Thank you so

13 much.

14             EVA:  Okay.  One -- I have a couple more

15 questions.  One moment.

16             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

17             EVA:  I just want to confirm your mailing

18 address.  That was 6284 Horseshoe Bar Road?

19             MR. ENYART:  Correct.

20             EVA:  Okay.  And that was in Loomis,

21 California?

22             MR. ENYART:  Correct.

23             EVA:  Okay. and the zip code was 95650?

24             MR. ENYART:  Correct.

25             EVA:  Okay.  All right.  So to confirm,
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1 service will be reconnected at 5 -- 50 Newton Street

2 UB, Norwalk, Ohio, 44857 as of January 29th, 2018,

3 and the mailing address will be the one I just

4 repeated and the deposit --

5             MR. ENYART:  Correct.

6             EVA:  -- the deposit of $194 will appear

7 on your first bill.

8             MR. ENYART:  Correct.

9             EVA:  And for your safety and the safety

10 of our workers reconnecting the meters, please turn

11 off the main breaker, and you can view the Customer

12 Rights and Obligations brochure on our website at

13 www.FirstEnergyCorp.com/rights-oh, and we will send

14 you a summary of this information at

15 Russell.Enyart@gmail.com.

16             MR. ENYART:  Okay.  I'm -- I'm not going

17 to be present at the building to turn off the main

18 breaker, so just make a note if that's what you need

19 to do.

20             EVA:  Okay, I will.  What day do you --

21 Oh, you said no access.

22             MR. ENYART:  Yeah, I'm -- I'm in

23 California.  The building's in Ohio.  It would be a

24 long morning trip to turn off the breaker.

25             EVA:  Okay.  And you wanted to change the
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1 other address as well, correct?

2             MR. ENYART:  Which address?

3             EVA:  The other account I mean.  You said

4 there was two.

5             MR. ENYART:  Yes.  Oh, I'm sorry.  Yeah.

6 I thought -- you only did one account?

7             EVA:  Yeah, only I'm -- I'm only able to

8 do one at a time.

9             MR. ENYART:  Okay.  I thought we were

10 done with both.

11             EVA:  It will be easier now cause I have

12 all your information here now.

13             MR. ENYART:  Beautiful.  Okay.

14             EVA:  Okay, give me... Okay.  Let me just

15 get the other account up.  You already gave me the

16 number.  I'm just going to confirm it with you.  One

17 moment.  Okay.  So the other one, it was 50 Newton

18 Street and it was U1?

19             MR. ENYART:  U1 is what they told me,

20 correct.

21             EVA:  Okay.

22             MR. ENYART:  7885 is the current account

23 number.

24             EVA:  Okay.  Okay.  And for this one,

25 they are asking for a deposit of $333.
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1             MR. ENYART:  Okay.  Can you put that one

2 on the bill also?

3             EVA:  I can do that, yes.

4             MR. ENYART:  Thanks.  Okay.

5             EVA:  And you would like to start it as

6 of Monday as well?

7             MR. ENYART:  Well, I would love to do it

8 today, but Monday's fine if that's the earliest we

9 can do.

10             EVA:  Yeah, we -- it's always the next

11 business day.

12             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

13             EVA:  Okay.  And you said no dogs?

14             MR. ENYART:  Not that I know of.

15             EVA:  Okay.

16             MR. ENYART:  Yeah, it's a commercial

17 building, so....

18             EVA:  Okay.  And can you just confirm the

19 phone numbers for me that you had.

20             MR. ENYART:  Yeah, my phone number's

21 916-524-9733, and then my second number is

22 916-770-5121.

23             EVA:  Okay.

24             MR. ENYART:  And I just got my first

25 e-mail from you.
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1             EVA:  Awesome.  And who did you say was

2 the --

3             MR. ENYART:  We're buddies now.

4             EVA:  And who did you say you want to

5 access the account, your partner?

6             MR. ENYART:  John, yeah, Randall.  John

7 Randall.  What's that?

8             EVA:  Okay.  Now, would you like to also

9 receive those bills via -- via e-mail?

10             MR. ENYART:  Sure.

11             EVA:  Okay.  Great.  And would you like

12 to use the same e-mail address?

13             MR. ENYART:  Yes, please.

14             EVA:  Okay.  And the mailing address, you

15 want the California one?

16             MR. ENYART:  Yes, please.

17             EVA:  Okay.  Give me one moment.

18             MR. ENYART:  Appreciate it.

19             EVA:  Okay, great.  So to confirm,

20 service will be reconnected at 50 Newton Street U1,

21 Norwalk, Ohio, 44857 as of January 29, 2018.  And the

22 mailing address is going to be 6284 Horseshoe Bar

23 Road, Loomis, California, 95650.

24             MR. ENYART:  Okay, perfect.

25             EVA:  All right.  So the deposit of
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1 $333 will appear on the first bill, and you can use

2 our Customer Rights and Obligations brochure at our

3 website at www.FirstEnergyCorp.com/rights-ohio, and

4 we will e-mail you a summary of this information as

5 well.

6             MR. ENYART:  Sounds good.

7             EVA:  Is there anything else I can do for

8 you?

9             MR. ENYART:  No, you've been great.

10 Thank you for your help today.

11             EVA:  You're welcome.  If you have no

12 further questions, please hold the line for a brief

13 confirmation of your call.  Thank you for calling and

14 have a good day.

15             (Audio playback concluded.)

16             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you, Mr. Schmidt.

17             Before I hand it over to Mr. Whitt,

18 Mr. Doringo, was there anything in there that we

19 missed and that you would like to address as a motion

20 to strike?

21             MR. DORINGO:  No, your Honor.  Thank you.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.

23             Mr. Whitt.

24             MR. WHITT:  Thank you, your Honor.  Next

25 we will, I guess, state for identification purposes
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1 the wav file that we'll identify as Exhibit 2B, and

2 this is a wav file again with a series of zeros and

3 then it ends in 9, and it reflects a call by

4 Mr. Enyart to Ohio Edison on February 1st, 2018.

5             The recording lasts for three minutes and

6 29 seconds before the call is dropped.  The dialogue

7 between Mr. Enyart and the Company ends at a minute

8 and 21 seconds, so we will only play up to that point

9 and then omit the background hold period that occurs

10 after the dialogue.

11             THE EXAMINER:  Does the dialogue pick

12 back up?

13             MR. WHITT:  It does not, your Honor.

14             THE EXAMINER:  So we're going to hear a

15 straight minute and some odd seconds.  I'm sorry, I

16 missed the exact amount.

17             MR. WHITT:  Yes.  And the dialogue ends

18 at approximately a minute and 21 seconds.

19             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Does that comport

20 with your understanding of how we were going to go,

21 Mr. Doringo?

22             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, it does.  Thank you.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Are we prepared to

24 play that or do you have a broad objection again to

25 the audio?
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1             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you, your Honor.

2 Yeah, I would -- I have the same objection that I had

3 to the first one.  I actually thought we were

4 addressing those for all of these recordings.  I'll

5 restate that, I'll just restate that here again that

6 I do think there are hearsay problems, and I will --

7 if this is played, I'll intend to object where

8 necessary as well or move to strike as I mentioned

9 I'll have to do given the circumstances.

10             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  I'm sorry, I didn't

11 understand you were raising it as to all three, but I

12 am happy to proceed that way and state for the record

13 that you have preserved your overall objection,

14 although it was overruled.

15             As to the general playback of the audio,

16 we do anticipate that Mr. Doringo had indicated that

17 he did have a motion to strike or an objection about

18 20 seconds through this, so I will keep my ears

19 perked up for that, and we'll do our best; otherwise,

20 Mr. Schmidt, if you could go ahead and start the

21 audio, I would appreciate it.  Thank you.

22             (Audio playback commences.)

23             BRIANA:  Hello, this is Briana.  May I

24 have your name and service address?

25             MR. ENYART:  Hey, Brianna, my name is
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1 Russell Enyart.  My service address is 50 Newton

2 Street.

3             BRIANA:  Thank you.  Do you have your

4 account number?

5             MR. ENYART:  I don't remember my new

6 account numbers.  I just turned on service this last

7 week, and I turned -- I turned on two meters and you

8 guys shut off one of the two --

9             BRIANA:  Okay.

10             MR. ENYART:  -- and it caused my water

11 main to break.  The pipes froze.

12             (Audio playback paused.)

13             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.  Your Honor, I

14 move to strike that last statement.

15             THE EXAMINER:  Grounds?

16             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  I believe the

17 statement was you guys shut off one of the two meters

18 causing the water main to break.  The grounds are

19 that it's hearsay.  Mr. Enyart, as we just learned

20 from the last call, was not at the property on this

21 day.  He is repeating what someone else has told him.

22 Classic hearsay.

23             Additionally, no foundation for that

24 statement since he's in an entirely different state

25 at the time he made it.  So those are the grounds.
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1 Thank you, your Honor.

2             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt?

3             MR. WHITT:  Your Honor, the prior

4 statement of a party is an exception to the hearsay

5 rule.  If we just went with the definition of

6 hearsay, nothing that happens out of court would ever

7 be admissible which obviously is not the case.  There

8 are many things that fit the hearsay, but then we

9 have a very long list of objections -- I'm sorry, of

10 exceptions.  And those exceptions include prior

11 statements of a party, business records.  There's a

12 catchall exception, many other exceptions to the

13 hearsay rule.

14             Again, this is a recording of the Company

15 that occurs in the regular course of business.

16 Mr. Enyart again is available for cross-examination,

17 and it's actually the Complainant who would be

18 prejudiced by the exclusion or striking this exchange

19 that occurred on a key date in the case.  Certainly

20 the Commission is entitled to know what the parties

21 were saying to each other on a key issue and a key

22 date relevant to the complaint.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Doringo, your

24 response?

25             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you, your Honor.
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1 This broad idea of any statement by a witness is

2 somehow admissible over a hearsay objection is not

3 supported anywhere in the Ohio Rules of Evidence.

4 And even if that was true, this would not -- that

5 would be irrelevant to the hearsay question that he

6 is just repeating what someone else who was on-site

7 had told him.  There's no exception that covers that

8 part of this even if we assume that other position is

9 correct which it's not.

10             Mr. Enyart had a chance to file, and he

11 did file Direct Testimony in this case, and I'm going

12 to ask him about that.  And of course statements made

13 by declarant while testifying are not hearsay, but an

14 out-of-court statement even made by a testifying

15 witness is hearsay.

16             And in this instance we have double

17 hearsay regarding an issue that is key to this case,

18 as Mr. Whitt points out, and they are absolutely

19 offering it for the truth of the matter asserted by

20 Mr. Enyart that Ohio Edison shut off the power to his

21 property.  Thank you.

22             THE EXAMINER:  I am going to overrule the

23 motion to strike with the caveat that Mr. Enyart's

24 statement is being allowed onto the record as an

25 expression of his opinion as to what happened and
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1 will not be asserted -- or will not be deemed the

2 truth of the matter asserted.

3             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you, your Honor.  I'm

4 sorry to make something that's already complicated

5 more so, so I understand your ruling, it's being

6 admitted but not for the truth of the matter asserted

7 in Mr. Enyart's statement; did I understand that

8 correctly?

9             THE EXAMINER:  Correct.  That's

10 ultimately the conclusion for the Commission to come

11 to.  So it is a statement by the Complainant as to

12 what he believes is going on, but the ultimate issue

13 in this case involves very specific facts -- or

14 conclusion, I'm sorry again to be muddling it, but

15 that is a conclusion for the Commission to come to,

16 not for either party to come to.

17             So that statement may come in as

18 Mr. Enyart's opinion as to what happened, but the

19 Commission will not allow Mr. Enyart to draw its

20 conclusion for the Commission.

21             MR. DORINGO:  Understood.  Thank you.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Schmidt, you may

23 resume playing the audio.

24             (Audio playback commences.)

25             MR. ENYART:  Now I have water going into
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1 the City of Norwalk.  They came out.  They shut off

2 the water main at the street, so I need immediately

3 to make sure that that meter gets turned back on.

4             BRIANA:  Okay.  What's the last part of

5 your Social?

6             MR. ENYART:  (Partial Social Security

7 number).

8             BRIANA:  Okay.  And you did say 50 Newton

9 Street?

10             MR. ENYART:  Correct.

11             BRIANA:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.  Let me go

12 ahead and get you over to our New Service Team so

13 they can set everything up for you, okay?

14             MR. ENYART:  Well, okay.  I've already

15 turned on the meter.  I've already -- I got charged

16 two deposits, so I don't know why it's off.

17             BRIANA:  Yeah, it's not showing me

18 anything in regards to --

19             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

20             BRIANA:  Yeah.

21             MR. ENYART:  All right.

22             BRIANA:  So, yeah, let me find out what's

23 going on for you and get you to the right department,

24 okay?

25             MR. ENYART:  Sounds good.
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1             BRIANA:  Okay, one second.

2             (Audio playback concluded.)

3             THE EXAMINER:  All right.  Mr. Whitt.

4             MR. WHITT:  Thank you, your Honor.  We

5 would now like to mark for identification Complainant

6 Exhibit 2C which is a wav file ending in 10, 10, and

7 it's a second call by Mr. Enyart to the Company on

8 February 1st, 2018 lasting a total of 24 minutes and

9 44 seconds.

10             There are two fairly significant hold

11 periods that we are redacting from the audio that we

12 will play, and those hold sessions last between 1

13 minute and 12 seconds to 8 minutes and 45 seconds.

14 And the second hold period is from 13 minutes, 38

15 seconds to 23 minutes and 55 seconds.

16             Again, I believe the technical folks at

17 the Commission have edited the wav file we produced

18 to shorten the amount of audio that we're actually

19 going to play today for the record.

20             THE EXAMINER:  And those edits were sent

21 to you?  Did you review them to ensure that they

22 comported with your intentions?

23             MR. WHITT:  I did not, but if they don't,

24 that's on me for not checking.  If there's any

25 issues, we can take it up after the audio plays.



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

42

1             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.

2             Again, Mr. Doringo, your overall

3 objection is noted, preserved, and I do anticipate

4 we'll be getting some motions to strike during the

5 playback.  Again, just do your best.  You did a great

6 job last time.  So we'll just handle them as they

7 come.

8             Mr. Schmidt, if you could queue us up,

9 I'd appreciate it.

10             (Audio playback commences.)

11             EMILY:  Hello, this is Emily.  May I have

12 your first and last name with your address, please.

13             MR. ENYART:  I'm sorry, what do you need?

14             EMILY:  What's your first and last name

15 with your address, please.

16             MR. ENYART:  Russell Enyart, 50 Newton

17 Street, Norwalk, Ohio.

18             EMILY:  Okay, thank you.  And what's the

19 address?

20             MR. ENYART:  50 Newton Street, Norwalk,

21 Ohio.

22             EMILY:  I'm sorry, I'm sorry, you just

23 gave that to me.  What's your first and last name?

24             MR. ENYART:  Russell Enyart.

25             EMILY:  Okay.  How can I help you today?
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1             MR. ENYART:  I called in last week to

2 turn on power to two meters, and you all turned on

3 power to one meter and turned off the other meter.

4 When you all turned off the second meter, the UB

5 meter, it then caused the pipes to freeze, they

6 cracked, and then the City of Norwalk came out

7 because there was water flowing out onto the streets.

8 So I need to make sure that we get --

9             MR. DORINGO:  Objection, your Honor.

10 Move to strike.

11             THE EXAMINER:  Proceed.

12             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  It's the same

13 grounds as I raised before, your Honor.  I'm doing my

14 best.  I think it was around -- started around 39

15 seconds into the call, the time stamp of the call, to

16 the moment that I raised my objection.

17             Again, Mr. Enyart is -- these are hearsay

18 statements and statements not based on his personal

19 knowledge regarding the circumstances at the property

20 that the meter had been shut off by Ohio Edison, thus

21 causing damage.  And so I would just reiterate the

22 grounds I had stated before.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt, did you want to

24 make any comments?  You're on mute.

25             MR. WHITT:  My response, your Honor, is
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1 basically the same as before, and I would also note

2 that the representative to whom Mr. Enyart is

3 speaking doesn't have the personal knowledge of

4 anything either.

5             The importance of the dialogue is that

6 each party is informing the other of something and

7 the parties are acting upon the information that they

8 are exchanging.  Again, these are party statements.

9 Everybody is subject to cross-examination.  Everybody

10 is subject to explaining these calls, if necessary.

11             We understand that nothing that either

12 party says in the telephone calls conclusively

13 establishes the truth of anything.  Obviously the

14 parties dispute what the facts are, but we need to

15 know -- we have to have some context for the dispute,

16 and these recordings provide that.  Thank you.

17             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Doringo.

18             MR. DORINGO:  Nothing further on this

19 point.  I stand by the hearsay objection and dispute

20 that there's any exceptions of any statement to come

21 in over a hearsay objection.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Your objection is noted.

23 Your objection is overruled.  Again, and more to the

24 point to be perfectly clear, I do not want to see a

25 single one of these statements from these phone
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1 dialogues coming in in briefing as, "Well,

2 Commission, here it is, this is all you need to know,

3 so and so said X and it must be so."  These are

4 pieces of evidence that I will allow to come in for

5 the Commission to consider.  It will not be used or

6 argued as legal or ultimate conclusions.  So with

7 that, we will continue.

8             (Audio playback commences.)

9             MR. ENYART:  -- that meter turned on as I

10 requested last week and then I've got to talk to

11 somebody to whoever's going to pay for the broken

12 pipes.

13             EMILY:  Okay.  Let me go ahead and place

14 you on a brief hold while I take a look at this for

15 you, okay?

16             Hi, sir.  Are you still there?

17             MR. ENYART:  Hello up.  Yeah.

18             EMILY:  Thank you so much for holding.  I

19 do apologize.  So I know this is kind of a silly

20 question because you told me that your pipes have now

21 bursted (sic), but I -- I do -- I am required to

22 double check.  Have you checked --

23             MR. ENYART:  Yes.

24             EMILY:  -- the main breakers in the

25 property to see if....
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1             MR. ENYART:  I'm sorry?

2             EMILY:  Have you checked the main

3 breakers in the property?

4             MR. ENYART:  Yeah, no, it definitely

5 the -- you -- you guys came out and turned off the

6 power.  I talked to the building people.

7             EMILY:  So we turned it off?

8             MR. ENYART:  Off, correct.  You turned

9 one meter on which is great --

10             EMILY:  Right.

11             MR. ENYART:  -- but you turned one meter

12 off completely.

13             EMILY:  Right.  It was on previously?

14             MR. ENYART:  Yeah.

15             (Audio playback paused.)

16             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.  Your Honor,

17 move to strike.

18             THE EXAMINER:  Okay, proceed.

19             MR. DORINGO:  Sorry about that.  Thank

20 you.  And I tried better to note the times there, and

21 I think it was 1:34 of the reporting to 1:49, and I'm

22 moving to strike.

23             Again, I think the hearsay problem is

24 more pronounced here.  Those are the grounds again

25 that I move on.  Mr. Enyart stated I talked to the
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1 people at the building and they told me, you know, X

2 and Y.  So I'm going to reiterate my -- my hearsay

3 objections on the same grounds as I explained before.

4             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Doringo, I'm going to

5 overrule your motion -- or deny your motion to

6 strike, and I'm going to invite you to probe into

7 that on your cross-examination of Mr. Enyart.

8             Mr. Schmidt, if you could press Play

9 again.

10             (Audio playback commences.)

11             EMILY:  Let me see here....

12             MR. ENYART:  And the key is is to start

13 off with is to get it back on --

14             EMILY:  Of course.

15             MR. ENYART:  -- so that I can get the

16 pipe fixed because right now all of the tenants are

17 in danger because the fire sprinklers will not work

18 because they have the water shut off.

19             EMILY:  Okay.  Well, I'm going to -- I'm

20 obviously going to put an order in for it to be

21 reconnected today, and we'll get it working as soon

22 as possible.  I will also put in a claim for you

23 since your pipes bursted (sic), and we'll see if, you

24 know, we can fix -- I mean (inaudible).  Do you know

25 when they -- when they busted?
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1             MR. ENYART:  You turned it off on Monday.

2 I think I got my first call on Tuesday.  I'll have to

3 go back and look at my -- what's today?  Wednesday?

4             EMILY:  Today's Thursday.

5             MR. ENYART:  Thursday, I'm sorry.

6             MR. DORINGO:  Objection and move to

7 strike again.

8             (Audio playback paused.)

9             THE EXAMINER:  Go ahead.

10             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  And then the

11 grounds, again, the statement that you turned it off

12 on Monday, same hearsay grounds, lack of -- lack of

13 personal knowledge on behalf of Mr. Enyart regarding

14 that similar to my other objections in this recording

15 so far.

16             THE EXAMINER:  Noted.  I hear that one a

17 little bit louder but same grounds, same ruling.

18 Motion to strike is denied.

19             Mr. Schmidt, if you could help us out

20 again.

21             (Audio playback commences.)

22             MR. ENYART:  I'm sorry, I apologize, I'm

23 a very busy guy.  I've been in multiple states and

24 I'm in meetings.  And I've been getting calls.  I

25 believe it was yesterday or Tuesday.  I'll double
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1 check for you that that pipe actually broke and

2 started leaking everywhere.

3             EMILY:  Okay, I'll go ahead and put

4 Tuesday for now.

5             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

6             EMILY:  Just give me one moment here.

7             MR. ENYART:  Yeah, it's a bummer cause I

8 just bought the building last Friday.

9             EMILY:  Right.  I do apologize --

10             MR. ENYART:  Yeah.

11             EMILY:  -- I know.  I'm not sure what

12 happened.  I called our Meter Services.  They said

13 that they reconnected it but of course they did not,

14 so....

15             MR. ENYART:  Yeah.

16             EMILY:  So I'll go ahead and get some

17 information from you.  What's your e-mail address?

18             MR. ENYART:  Russell, R-U-S-S -- you

19 should have it there, it's R-U-S-S-E-L-L.Enyart,

20 E-N-Y-A-R-T, @gmail.com.  You all sent me e-mails

21 already, though.

22             EMILY:  Okay.

23             MR. ENYART:  Yeah.

24             EMILY:  And let's see...  So we'll just

25 say it was on the 30th.  Do you know approximately a
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1 time as to when they bursted (sic) or was it just

2 (inaudible) --

3             MR. ENYART:  I'm guessing cause you guys

4 came -- yeah, probably overnight.  So you guys came

5 in on Monday, shut it off.  I'm guessing that they

6 froze over (inaudible) --

7             (Audio playback paused.)

8             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.  Move to strike

9 on the same grounds as before, and this is another

10 restatement of you guys came in on Monday and shut it

11 off.

12             THE EXAMINER:  Objection preserved.  Move

13 to strike noted and denied on the same grounds.  We

14 can continue.

15             (Audio playback commences.)

16             MR. ENYART:  I'm guessing they froze

17 overnight on Tuesday, and then yesterday morning

18 after they burst, that's when the water was leaking

19 out into the streets.

20             EMILY:  Okay.

21             MR. ENYART:  And the City of Norwalk

22 called me and said, "Hey, what the heck is going on?"

23             EMILY:  Right.

24             MR. ENYART:  I said, "I have no idea."

25 So I sent a construction person over there, and



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

51

1 that's when he told me, "Hey, they shut off the

2 power."  They came in and I guess actually shut off

3 the power and caused the pipe to crack, the main

4 shut-off valve.

5             EMILY:  All right.  Let's see here....

6             (Audio playback paused.)

7             MR. DORINGO:  Objection and move to

8 strike, again, on -- on hearsay grounds.  There we

9 have Mr. Enyart saying, "I sent a construction guy

10 over, he called me, he told me they shut off the

11 power and caused the pipes to burst."  I think I'm

12 paraphrasing there, but again, hearsay objection and

13 move to strike.

14             THE EXAMINER:  Noted and denied.  And

15 let's keep going.

16             (Audio playback commences.)

17             EMILY:  Sorry, I'm just making some notes

18 here.

19             MR. ENYART:  No problem.

20             EMILY:  And what's a good phone number we

21 can reach you at during the day?

22             MR. ENYART:  I'll give you two.  The

23 first one is 916-770-5121.

24             EMILY:  Okay.

25             MR. ENYART:  The second one is
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1 916-524-9733.

2             EMILY:  Okay.  Now --

3             MR. ENYART:  And unless I'm in meetings,

4 I'll pick up both of those.

5             EMILY:  Okay, great.  So I have taken a

6 claim in here for you which basically --

7             MR. ENYART:  Thank you.

8             EMILY:  -- says that, you know, if -- if

9 we see -- if we -- I'm sorry, if we review it and we

10 realize that it was our error, you know, there will

11 be a compensation for that, but I can't guarantee

12 anything.  Someone will get ahold --

13             MR. ENYART:  Okay.

14             EMILY:  -- within ten business days to --

15 to discuss this with you.  Now what I'm going to do

16 is do a same day reconnection.  That way we can get

17 this taken care of for you.  Just bear with me one

18 moment.

19             MR. ENYART:  Fantastic.  Thank you.

20             EMILY:  Not a problem.  And I'm sorry,

21 Russell, do you mind if I put you on one more brief

22 hold?

23             MR. ENYART:  No, go right ahead.

24             EMILY:  Thank you.

25             MR. ENYART:  Sure.
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1             EMILY:  Okay, Russell, I'm so sorry for

2 your wait.  I do appreciate you holding.  So I have

3 put the notification in for us to reconnect this

4 meter for today.  So we're going to get out there as

5 soon as possible and get you -- get your power on.

6             As far as the pipes, I did put that claim

7 in for you, like I said, so that will be -- someone

8 will be contacting you -- contacting you within ten

9 business days to get that taken care of, okay?

10             MR. ENYART:  Fantastic.  About what time

11 do you think it will be on today?  Do you have any

12 idea?

13             EMILY:  So I can't give a specific

14 timeframe as to when.

15             MR. ENYART:  Okay.  No worries.

16             EMILY:  There were -- there were other

17 people scheduled for today, but since we're doing it

18 for today, I can't really say when, but --

19             MR. ENYART:  Got it.

20             EMILY:  -- we'll do it for today, okay?

21             MR. ENYART:  Sounds good.  Thank you.

22             EMILY:  Okay.  Not a problem.  If there's

23 nothing else, please hold the line for a brief

24 confirmation and you have a great day.

25             MR. ENYART:  Thanks.
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1             (Audio playback concluded.)

2             THE EXAMINER:  Before I hand it back over

3 to Mr. Whitt, I just wanted to make two

4 clarifications for the record.  We talked about

5 marking these last two audio exhibits as 2B and 2C,

6 but I don't know that I ever affirmatively did that,

7 so they are so marked.

8             (EXHIBITS MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

9             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt.

10             MR. WHITT:  Thank you, your Honor.  We

11 will next be calling Mr. Enyart to testify.  Before

12 we do so, if we need to go off the record, that's

13 fine, I wanted to inquire whether this would be an

14 appropriate time for perhaps a five-minute break if

15 that's acceptable to everyone, and then we will put

16 on Mr. Enyart.

17             THE EXAMINER:  I think it's a great time

18 for a five-minute break.  We will go off the record.

19 I'm going to short change you by a minute, and we'll

20 come back on about 11:30.  See everyone then.

21             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.

22             (Recess taken.)

23             THE EXAMINER:  We will go back on the

24 record.  We just took a brief break.  Before we came

25 back on the record, we did promote Mr. Enyart to a
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1 Panelist position so that he is prepared to start his

2 testimony.

3             Mr. Whitt, do you want me to go ahead and

4 swear him in or do you want to officially call him?

5             MR. WHITT:  Thank you, your Honor, we

6 will officially call the witness and allow you to

7 swear him in.

8             THE EXAMINER:  Perfect.  Mr. Enyart if

9 you would raise your right hand for me.

10             (Witness placed under oath.)

11             THE EXAMINER:  And just note, everyone,

12 that Mr. Enyart does have just a bit of a delay and

13 be cognizant of it as we're going through the

14 questioning.

15             Mr. Whitt.

16             MR. WHITT:  Thank you, your Honor.

17                         - - -

18                     RUSSELL ENYART

19 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

20 examined and testified as follows:

21                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

22 By Mr. Whitt:

23        Q.   Good morning, sir.  Could you please

24 introduce yourself.

25        A.   My name is Russell Enyart.
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1        Q.   And for the benefit of the court

2 reporter, could you spell your last name?

3        A.   I can.  My last name is spelled

4 E-N-Y-A-R-T-as in Tom.

5        Q.   Are you the same Russell Enyart who

6 prepared written testimony in this case?

7        A.   I am.

8        Q.   Do you have a document in front of you

9 marked Exhibit -- or Complainant Exhibit 1?

10        A.   I can get it in front of me.  Hold on.  I

11 do.

12        Q.   Is Complainant Exhibit 1 your Direct

13 Testimony?

14        A.   It is.

15        Q.   Do you have any corrections to your

16 testimony?

17        A.   I do not.

18        Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions

19 that appear in your written testimony today, would

20 your answers be the same?

21        A.   Yes, they would.

22             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.  The witness is

23 available for cross.

24             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Doringo, let me just

25 interject real quick and officially just mark
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1 Complainant Exhibit 1, the Direct Testimony of

2 Russell Enyart, and now it is to you.

3             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

4                         - - -

5                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

6 By Mr. Doringo:

7        Q.   Good to see you again, Mr. Enyart.  I'm

8 Ryan Doringo on behalf of Ohio Edison.  You purchased

9 the property -- Let me back up.  If I say the

10 property, can we agree I'm talking about 50 Newton

11 Street, Norwalk, Ohio?

12        A.   We can, yes.

13        Q.   Okay.  So you purchased the property on

14 January 26, 2018, right?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   And you testified in your Direct

17 Testimony that the flooding incident from the pump

18 room occurred on January 31st of 2018, right?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   You had never personally been to the

21 property before January 31st, 2018, correct?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   So you never personally inspected the

24 pump room at any time before this flood issue

25 occurred, right?
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1        A.   Right, yes.

2        Q.   You don't remember whether any documents

3 you reviewed before purchasing the property included

4 anything regarding the condition of the pump room,

5 correct?

6        A.   Correct, yes.

7        Q.   And you didn't ask anybody specifically

8 to inspect to pump house equipment before you

9 purchased the property, right?

10        A.   I did not ask anybody specifically to

11 inspect the pump room, correct.

12        Q.   And you don't know whether the pump house

13 at the property was inspected by anyone before you

14 purchased the property, correct?

15        A.   I believe in my testimony I said that

16 John Randall inspected all of the buildings, if I

17 remember correctly.

18        Q.   But you don't know as a matter of

19 personal knowledge that he inspected the pump room

20 before you purchased the property; isn't that true?

21        A.   Specifically I do not know, no.

22        Q.   And you don't know if the equipment in

23 the pump house was in working order before you

24 purchased the property, right?

25        A.   I know that it was not flooding.  I do
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1 not know what type of working order it was in.

2        Q.   Let me go back to my question.  My

3 question was you don't know if the equipment in the

4 pump house was in working order before you purchased

5 the property, correct?

6        A.   Correct.

7        Q.   So on January 26th, 2018 you called Ohio

8 Edison to transfer electric service to the property

9 to accounts in your name, right?

10        A.   Correct.

11        Q.   And you heard when you called on January

12 26th, 2018 that the service could not begin under

13 your name until the next business day which was

14 January 29th, 2018?

15        A.   Right.

16        Q.   And you agreed that service would begin

17 on January 29th, 2018, correct?

18        A.   Correct.  I preferred the 26th, but they

19 said the 29th was the earliest, correct, that's what

20 was in the call.

21        Q.   So you actually had two accounts with

22 Ohio Edison related to the property, right?

23        A.   Correct.

24        Q.   And those accounts relate to separate

25 meters, right?
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1        A.   Correct.

2        Q.   And those meters, in fact, serve

3 different parts of the property, correct?

4        A.   Correct.

5        Q.   But you don't know which meter is

6 associated with the pump house and which meter is

7 associated with the rest of the property, right?

8        A.   I remember from the recording that we

9 just heard I specified which one was not working

10 which was causing the problem at the pump house.  If

11 you asked me today which one is which, no, I do not.

12        Q.   So you know that because you just heard

13 yourself on the recording; is that right?

14        A.   Correct.  When I sent Steve, the

15 contractor guy, out there, my recollection is I

16 identified which one it was without power.

17             MR. DORINGO:  And I would move to strike

18 everything after "correct" or "yes" as not responsive

19 to the question, your Honor, where he talks about

20 sending Steve out to check the meter and Steve

21 telling him which one was turned off.  I'm sorry, I

22 believe you're muted or I'm not hearing you.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Sure, it's my specialty.

24 Could you read that back for me.  And Mr. Doringo, if

25 you could repeat your grounds for the motion, I would
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1 like to hear the grounds first and then hear the

2 question and answer.

3             MR. DORINGO:  Yeah, I was moving to

4 strike everything after the initial response to my

5 question which I believe was a yes or no question,

6 but I got a response that explained that Mr. Enyart

7 sent someone named Steve out to the property and it

8 was he who determined which meter was off.

9             MR. WHITT:  If I may, your Honor, the

10 witness is simply clarifying the basis of the limits

11 of his knowledge of how he knew what he knew.

12             THE EXAMINER:  Let's hear the question

13 and answer, please.

14             (Record read.)

15             THE EXAMINER:  I'm going to deny the

16 motion to strike.  Continue.

17             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.

18        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) So you testified,

19 Mr. Enyart, that this flooding incident from the pump

20 house occurred on January 31st, 2018, right?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   And you were not at the property on

23 January 31st, 2018, right?

24        A.   No.

25        Q.   So that's -- Sorry, maybe I confused
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1 myself with the question.  You're agreeing that you

2 were not at the property on that day, January 31st,

3 2018?

4        A.   I agree I was not at the property that

5 day.

6        Q.   So you did not personally observe that

7 either meter you paid for at the property had been

8 blocked by Ohio Edison, correct?

9        A.   You are correct, I did not personally

10 observe it.

11        Q.   And the date I'm talking about is

12 January 31st, 2018, you did not make that personal

13 observation on that date, correct?

14        A.   As I mentioned before, I relied on the

15 contractor I sent.  I did not personally see it.

16        Q.   You did not personally observe Ohio

17 Edison doing any work at the property on

18 January 31st, 2018, correct?

19        A.   No, sir, I did not personally.  I was not

20 there.  I think I was in the state of Texas that day.

21 So if you want to establish I was not in Ohio on

22 January 31st, I was in the state of Texas at a

23 meeting.

24        Q.   And it's true that you have never

25 personally observed Ohio Edison doing any work at the
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1 property on any day; is that right?

2        A.   That is correct.

3        Q.   At the time you purchased the property,

4 you had nine tenants at the property, right?

5        A.   Correct.

6        Q.   And you don't recall any of your nine

7 tenants complaining about not having electricity or

8 heat at any point from January 26th, 2018 to

9 February 1st, 2018, correct?

10        A.   Correct.

11        Q.   At the time that this -- Let me back up.

12 You said a couple times, and we heard in the phone

13 calls, that you sent a contractor out to the property

14 on January 31st who you believed determined there was

15 no power at the property; is that right?

16        A.   Correct.

17        Q.   At least no power to the pump room to be

18 more precise; is that correct?

19        A.   Correct.

20        Q.   And am I right that that was a handyman

21 who worked at the property named Steve?

22        A.   Correct.

23        Q.   And I know during your deposition you

24 didn't know Steve's last name.  Do you know it today?

25        A.   No, not today.
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1        Q.   I'll keep calling him Steve the handyman

2 then.

3        A.   All right.

4        Q.   You don't know how Steve determined there

5 was no electricity running to the pump house, right?

6        A.   What Steve had told me, my recollection

7 is that the meter that I identified was off, and then

8 I think you heard on the recording Ohio Edison said

9 they would collaborate (sic) that story making sure

10 that it was off, and it was collaborated (sic) by two

11 folks at Ohio Edison.  So as I sit here today, I'm

12 fairly confident that Ohio Edison turned off the

13 meter.

14        Q.   That wasn't my question.  My question is

15 you do not know how Steve determined that there was

16 no electricity running to the pump house, correct?

17        A.   Steve told me the meter was off and

18 identified the meter so that I could call in to Ohio

19 Edison to explain that we needed the meter turned

20 back on so we could get heat back on in the building.

21 I'm pretty sure that's what I just said in the call.

22        Q.   That wasn't my question.  I will move to

23 strike that response.  My question was you don't know

24 how he made that determination?

25        A.   Oh, gotcha, the technique that he used.
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1 I'm sorry, I apologize, no, I do not know the

2 technique that he used.  My apologies.

3             MR. DORINGO:  I think that answers the

4 question that I asked.  I still move to strike the

5 response as nonresponsive that I was initially given.

6             THE EXAMINER:  Motion to strike denied.

7        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) So you don't know Steve

8 has any background as an electrician, right?

9        A.   I mean, I know Steve has a background as

10 a general handyman.  He was able to make a

11 determination.  He also believed at first that he

12 could handle the broken pipe issue which was then out

13 of his scope of ability, a fire specialist.  I do not

14 know Steve's exact background on electrical or

15 plumbing.

16        Q.   So the answer to my question is yes, you

17 do not know if Steve has any background as an

18 electrician; is that right?

19        A.   Ryan, if you'd like to clarify the

20 question one step further, that would be great.  Is

21 he a licensed electrician or does he have an

22 electrical background of any kind?  I wouldn't be

23 able to make the determination that it was that panel

24 myself, although I could change out a plug, so I'm

25 not sure if you would say I have an electrical



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

66

1 background.  I can change out a normal three prong,

2 right, with a black, white and brown.  Steve was able

3 to determine which panel was out.

4        Q.   Mr. Enyart, do you remember we got

5 together for a deposition last September?

6        A.   I do.

7        Q.   And at that deposition, you had taken an

8 oath like you did today, right?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   And you swore to tell the truth, right?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   And you, in fact, did tell the truth at

13 that deposition?

14        A.   Hopefully I did to the best of my

15 ability, yes, sir, as my recollection.

16        Q.   Mr. Enyart, before this hearing, I sent

17 around to your counsel and to the Attorney-Examiner a

18 copy of your deposition transcript.  Do you have that

19 with you?

20        A.   I can find it if you tell me which one of

21 the exhibits it is.

22        Q.   I did not mark it as an exhibit.  I just

23 sent the transcript separately.  I did not intend to

24 mark it as an exhibit.

25        A.   I have ten Ohio Edison documents.  Do you
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1 know which one it is, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 --

2 oh, I found it.  It actually says my name.

3        Q.   Once you have that open, I direct you to

4 Page 66 of that transcript, lines 7 to 9.  Let me

5 know when you're there.

6        A.   Got it.

7        Q.   Okay.  And actually, let's start -- I

8 said lines 7 to 9.  Let's back up to line 2, and I'll

9 read starting at line 2 on Page 66.

10             "Question:  How did Steve make that

11 determination that there was no electricity running

12 to the pump house?

13             Answer:  I don't know the answer.  I

14 don't know how he determined there was no power.

15             Question:  Do you know if Steve has any

16 background as an electrician?

17             Answer:  I don't know, sir."

18             Did I read that correctly?

19        A.   You did, and I believe that's consistent

20 with my testimony today as I don't know what

21 experience he has as an electrician; however, I knew

22 that he was able to determine which panel was out.

23 Especially after listening to my audio recording that

24 day, obviously I got that information from Steve on

25 exactly what panel it was, so I think it's very
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1 consistent.

2             MR. DORINGO:  My question was did I read

3 that correctly.  I would again move to strike

4 everything after "yes."

5             THE EXAMINER:  Motion to strike is going

6 to be denied, but, Mr. Enyart, that was what we call

7 your one bite at the apple.  Mr. Doringo is asking

8 you very pointed questions.  Try to stick to the

9 question that has been asked.  After you have been

10 cross-examined, your counsel will have the

11 opportunity to allow yourself to better explain,

12 okay?

13             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, I learned

14 something new.  What is it called?

15             THE EXAMINER:  The Commission calls it

16 the one bite at the apple rule, that one warning.

17 After that, rulings could change.

18             THE WITNESS:  Okay, sounds good.  Thank

19 you.

20        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) So moving on, sticking

21 with Steve, though, you don't know if Steve has ever

22 worked for a public utility, right?

23        A.   I do not.

24        Q.   And you don't know if he has any

25 expertise in fire protection systems, right?
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1        A.   No, I do not.

2        Q.   And you also -- you don't know if Steve

3 observed Ohio Edison doing any work on the property

4 on January 29th, 2018, correct?

5        A.   January 29th, 2018?  No, I do not.

6        Q.   You also don't know if Steve observed

7 Ohio Edison doing any work at the property on

8 January 31st, 2018, correct?

9        A.   I do not.  I do know once I reviewed it,

10 somebody said to me, I don't know if it was Steve or

11 Jim, after further evaluation, they came back out and

12 turned it on, whoever they may be.  I think they

13 meant Ohio Edison.

14             MR. DORINGO:  I'm going to go ahead and

15 move to strike again.  My question was "You also

16 don't know if Steve observed Ohio Edison doing any

17 work at the property on January 31st, 2018."  I think

18 the answer was Yes," and then I got an explanation

19 about something that you heard from someone else

20 sometime later.  And I'd also strike on hearsay

21 grounds as well, as well as nonresponsive.

22             THE EXAMINER:  So you're moving to strike

23 everything after the initial one word answer?

24             MR. DORINGO:  Yes.

25             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Motion is granted.
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1             Mr. Enyart, stick to the question that's

2 being asked and let your counsel bring out the rest

3 of the information for you.

4        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) And your understanding,

5 Mr. Enyart, is that Steve only came to the property

6 on an as needed basis, right?

7        A.   Correct.

8        Q.   He wasn't generally hanging out at the

9 property, right?

10        A.   Correct.

11        Q.   At the time the flooding incident

12 occurred on January 31st, 2018, the pump house was

13 heated by one plug-in heater, correct?

14        A.   Correct.

15        Q.   To your knowledge, that was the only heat

16 source for the pump house at that time, correct?

17        A.   Correct.

18        Q.   And you don't know if that heater would

19 have needed to be manually turned back on after it

20 was shut off, right?

21        A.   Correct.

22        Q.   So if the power went out for some reason,

23 you wouldn't know whether someone needed to turn that

24 heater back on in the pump house?

25        A.   Right.
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1        Q.   I'm sorry, is that correct?  I couldn't

2 hear you on that one.

3        A.   Correct.

4        Q.   And if someone turned off the breaker to

5 the property, you don't know if the space heater in

6 the pump house would have needed to be manually

7 turned back on, correct?

8        A.   Correct.

9        Q.   You didn't have anybody inspect the

10 interior of the pump house after your purchase of the

11 property and before the flooding event on

12 January 31st, 2018, correct?

13        A.   Correct.

14        Q.   You did not have insurance on the

15 property as of the date you purchased it, correct?

16        A.   Correct.

17        Q.   And you did not have insurance on the

18 property as of January 31st, 2018 either, right?

19        A.   Correct.

20        Q.   So you retained counsel in this matter in

21 your complaint against Ohio Edison on June 1st, 2018,

22 right?

23        A.   Sounds right, yes.

24        Q.   And your counsel began settlement

25 negotiations with Ohio Edison around that time,
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1 right?

2        A.   I believe so, yes.

3        Q.   As part of those settlement negotiations,

4 Ohio Edison's lawyers sent you a letter on June 22nd,

5 2018, correct?

6        A.   Is that Lindo or Lindow?

7        Q.   Yeah, I can represent that Mike Lindow

8 was Complainant's representative for Ohio Edison at

9 that time and you recall he sent you a letter on

10 June 22nd, 2018, correct?

11        A.   I do.

12        Q.   And that's part of those negotiations we

13 were having regarding the settlement of this case?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   And you attached that letter as Exhibit B

16 to the complaint, right?

17        A.   Correct.

18             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you, Mr. Enyart.  I

19 have no further questions.

20             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt.

21             MR. WHITT:  I have no redirect.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Mr. Enyart, thank

23 you very much for being with us today.  You may

24 step -- you may step-down which means Mr. Schmidt

25 will technically demote you back to an Attendee role.
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1             Mr. Whitt.

2             MR. WHITT:  Thank you, your Honor.  At

3 this time, the Complainant would like to introduce a

4 few more exhibits.  I believe I've already -- we've

5 already identified Complainant Exhibit 1 as

6 Mr. Enyart's Direct Testimony.

7             We previously identified Complainant

8 Exhibit 2 as Responses and Document Production to the

9 Complainant's First Set of Discovery.  We then

10 further identified the audio recordings within that

11 production as Complainant's Exhibits 2A, 2B and 2C.

12             At this time, we would also like to mark

13 the Responses to Complainant's Second Set of

14 Discovery and the Document Production as Complainant

15 Exhibit 3.

16             THE EXAMINER:  Give me just a minute.  I

17 thought I had everything printed out.  Complainant

18 Exhibit 3.  Is this premarked?

19             MR. WHITT:  Yes.

20             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  So we are marking a

21 seven-page document entitled Ohio Edison Company's

22 Response to Objections to Complainant's Second

23 Request for Production of Documents as Complainant

24 Exhibit 3.

25             MR. WHITT:  Yes, your Honor.  And that
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1 included Ohio Edison Bate Stamps 12 and 13 with the

2 documents.  We have also pre- --

3             THE EXAMINER:  That will be so marked.

4             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.

5             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

6             MR. WHITT:  We also have premarked the

7 Respondent's Answers and Objections to the

8 Complainant's Third Set of Discovery and the

9 accompanying documents Bate stamped OE14 and 15.

10 That should be premarked as Complainant Exhibit 4.

11             THE EXAMINER:  Does that also have OE16

12 and 17 at the end?

13             MR. WHITT:  Yes.  Thank you.

14             THE EXAMINER:  So marked.

15             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

16             MR. WHITT:  Complainant Exhibit 5 we had

17 intended to include only the Rules and Regulations

18 section of Ohio Edison's tariff.  I think the

19 complete tariff got submitted, but we'll -- we can

20 leave it as is, I suppose, but we would like the

21 record to reflect the identification of that document

22 as Complainant Exhibit 5.

23             THE EXAMINER:  So marked.

24             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

25             MR. WHITT:  And I'm not sure of the
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1 Bench's preference with regard to pleadings filed in

2 the case.  If you would like to mark pleadings that

3 we may rely on in briefing as exhibits, we're happy

4 to do so.  If we don't need to, then we won't, but we

5 have premarked the Complaint filed in this case as

6 Complainant's Exhibit 6, the Company's Answer as

7 Exhibit 7 and the Company's First Amended Answer as

8 Complainant's Exhibit 8.

9             THE EXAMINER:  As to pleadings, I don't

10 believe they need to be marked as exhibits in order

11 to be able to use them in your briefing.

12             Mr. Doringo?

13             MR. DORINGO:  I guess I could be seen

14 coming out of my seat a little bit.  Yeah, on the

15 pleadings, I just want to make a clear record on this

16 point.  We do not believe that they are admissible in

17 evidence to prove anything in this case, especially

18 the Complaint which is, of course, as we all know

19 just allegations to be proved.

20             So we would -- I think maybe that's where

21 we were going, and that's fine, I just wanted to get

22 that on the record and to say that we would object to

23 using any of the Complaint or anything attached to

24 the Complaint as evidence in the post hearing briefs.

25 We do not think they constitute admissible evidence
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1 that are proof of anything.

2             THE EXAMINER:  Agree.  They're your

3 pleadings, they're your Complaint, they're your

4 Answer, they're your First Amended Answer, they are

5 not evidence.  To the degree they may be referenced

6 in briefs, they are the basis of this case, they are

7 pleadings.

8             So, again, I guess my only question for

9 you all is do you want them -- No, it's not even a

10 question.  I'm not going to mark the pleadings.

11 They're fair game for briefing to the extent they

12 exist as the parties' positions.

13             MR. WHITT:  To be clear, we will be

14 relying on Exhibit B to the Complaint which

15 Mr. Doringo himself just laid a foundation for with

16 the witness about a document he received from the

17 Company during the case.

18             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Doringo, what's your

19 position on that?

20             MR. DORINGO:  My position is my

21 foundation I laid was for a different reason.  That's

22 a protected Rule 408 settlement communication.  That

23 is not evidence that's for anything under Rule 408.

24 Mr. Enyart admitted that that letter was sent to him

25 as part of the negotiation of his claim against Ohio



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

77

1 Edison.

2             Rule 408 very clearly states that any

3 conduct or statements made in the course of trying to

4 settle a claim are not admissible in evidence.

5 That's my position on that, and I would also say --

6 go ahead.

7             THE EXAMINER:  Response?

8             MR. WHITT:  Your Honor, the Rule 408 may

9 have some bearing in a jury trial where laypersons

10 don't necessarily understand the legal significance

11 of settlement negotiations and so forth.  Here we're

12 dealing with an expert trier of fact who's not going

13 to be unduly influenced by anything that may have

14 been said during settlement negotiations if, in fact,

15 that's what this letter was sent for.

16             Moreover, in the Company's Answer, they

17 admit that the letter is something that was sent by

18 the Company to the Complainant.  And within that

19 letter, there are statements that directly contradict

20 the testimony filed by the Company's witness.

21             Again, no need I suppose to get too in

22 the weeds on this point, but just to reiterate my

23 point, I think it's consistent with the Bench's

24 ruling that the pleadings are part of the record in

25 the case, but they aren't conclusive on anything.
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1 And to the extent the parties want to argue in brief

2 about the weight or significance to be given to the

3 documents attached to the Complaint, they can do so

4 in briefing.

5             THE EXAMINER:  We're going to come back

6 to this point because I need to look better at the

7 exhibit to the Complaint to make a better ruling on

8 this, especially on whether or not it was in the

9 course of settlement discussions.  That might be

10 something we all need to come back and talk about at

11 the end of this hearing and maybe even take a break

12 and argue it because say all you want, even the

13 Commission has rules against anything that occurred

14 in a settlement discussion coming in as evidence in a

15 case.  That is not just a civil rule.  That is a rule

16 in front of the Commission as well.

17             When I talk about the pleadings coming in

18 as they are as being pleadings, that would be the

19 allegations of the Complaint and the specific Answers

20 to those allegations.  I need to look more closely at

21 Exhibit B before I make a determination as to that.

22             So at least as to Exhibit B to the

23 Complaint, I would like to mark that as Complainant

24 Exhibit 6B so that when I come back and make a

25 ruling, we all know exactly what I'm talking about.
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1             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

2             THE EXAMINER:  Are there any questions

3 about that?

4             MR. DORINGO:  Just so I'm clear because I

5 do have a couple responses to what Mr. Whitt said,

6 but if we're going to hold further argument on this

7 later or if you want to give us an opportunity to be

8 heard more, I can do that then or I can do it now,

9 whatever your preference is.

10             THE EXAMINER:  We're not going to argue

11 it now.  I'm telling you right off the bat I'm going

12 to have to go off record and consider the arguments.

13 I'm not going to rule on this by the seat of my

14 pants.

15             MR. DORINGO:  I understand, thank you.

16             THE EXAMINER:  That's up to you.

17             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  So just to

18 respond, the policy of Rule 408 basis for my argument

19 initially was it's to promote settlement discussions.

20 It's not about the parties feeling free to disclose

21 facts or their positions in settlement.

22             It's not about the trier of fact and who

23 the trier of fact is.  It's about making all judicial

24 and regulatory processes more efficient in promoting

25 settlement across the span of disputes that we all
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1 find ourselves in, at least on this call as lawyers,

2 right.

3             But anyways, just to make a very clear

4 record, on the other aspects, the other allegations

5 of the Complaint and the other attachments to the

6 Complaint, that I think Mr. Whitt is suggesting that

7 those are, in fact, evidence that can be used in the

8 briefing, and I just want to strongly disagree with

9 that.

10             Allegations in the Complaint are not

11 evidence.  The Ohio Supreme Court has long recognized

12 that pleadings are, quote, not admissible into

13 evidence at a hearing to prove a party's allegations

14 and must not be considered as evidence by the Court.

15 And that's Felton v. Felton, 79 Ohio St. 3d 34 1997.

16             And I don't know if that's where -- I

17 don't think that's where the Bench is going, but I

18 think that's where Mr. Whitt is going, so I just want

19 to be very clear on the record here on our position

20 on that.  And to the extent that we see those

21 reliance on those materials as proof in the briefing,

22 we would have issues with that, so thank you.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.

24             Mr. Whitt.

25             MR. WHITT:  At this time, your Honor, the
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1 Complainant would move for the admission of the

2 previously identified exhibits which are 1 through 6,

3 and that would include 2A, B, C, as well as 6B.

4             THE EXAMINER:  As to 6B, I will not rule

5 on that right now as to its admissibility.  I will

6 defer that until the end of this hearing or at least

7 until I've had the opportunity to consider it over

8 lunch.

9             Mr. Doringo, let's go one at a time, are

10 there any objections to admitting Complainant Exhibit

11 1 into the record?

12             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, your Honor, I do have

13 objections, and it might not be surprising at this

14 point in the hearing some motions to strike some

15 statements Mr. Enyart's testimony.

16             THE EXAMINER:  Motions to strike should

17 have been raised before Mr. Enyart was on the stand.

18             MR. DORINGO:  I'm sorry, in my

19 experience, we do the motions to strike at the time

20 that they move the evidence in.

21             THE EXAMINER:  I'll let you be heard.

22 Let's start with your motions.

23             MR. DORINGO:  Okay.  The first -- And I

24 have two bases generally for the motions.  The

25 first -- Well, the first is hearsay.  We see a lot of
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1 the same problems in Mr. Enyart's testimony that

2 we've been discussing earlier today.  The second

3 is --

4             THE EXAMINER:  Actually, let me interrupt

5 you real quick and just fully share my thought

6 process.  The reason that I prefer to take motions to

7 strike before is because it clearly limits where your

8 cross-examination is going to go, and therefore, it

9 clearly limits where Mr. Whitt's redirect can go.

10             If we open a giant can of worms on any of

11 these motions to strike that have happened after

12 Mr. Enyart was called to the stand and after he has

13 been dismissed, I will consider allowing him to come

14 back on the stand and reopening redirect to anything

15 that you raised if any of your motions to strike

16 properly touch on your cross-examination.

17             MR. DORINGO:  Understood.  Understood.

18 The first issue was the hearsay issues.  The second

19 deals was this same issue we're thinking about with

20 6B now because at several points in his testimony,

21 Mr. Enyart relies on the letter from Mr. Lindow that

22 was attached to the Complaint.  So those are the two

23 general grounds.

24             I can start with Mr. Enyart's testimony

25 at Page 5, lines 9 to 10 beginning with the -- so the
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1 second sentence and then the beginning with "Steve"

2 and ending with "first," we would move to strike that

3 on grounds of hearsay.

4             THE EXAMINER:  Where are we?  Page 5, 9

5 to 12?

6             MR. DORINGO:  I'm sorry, 9 to 10.

7             THE EXAMINER:  9 to 10.

8             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, the second sentence

9 beginning with "Steve" and ending with "first."

10             THE EXAMINER:  Motion to strike denied.

11             MR. DORINGO:  Okay.  In the same Q and A,

12 I also move to strike lines 11 and 12 at the sentence

13 beginning with "Steve" and ending with "house."

14             THE EXAMINER:  Again, motion to strike

15 denied.

16             MR. DORINGO:  Again, that was just for

17 the record on hearsay grounds there.

18             Page 6 at lines 1 to 2, the sentence

19 beginning "I told her" and ending with "been

20 disconnected," we move to strike that as well on

21 hearsay grounds and I raised previously with some

22 other statements.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Fairly sure he can testify

24 as to what he said to somebody else, so that motion

25 to strike is denied.
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1             MR. DORINGO:  Understood.  I understand

2 the ruling.  Just to be clear, my basis was repeating

3 the statements from people he spoke to on-site, but I

4 understand.

5             THE EXAMINER:  Next motion.

6             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, the same page, 6, at

7 lines 17 to 18.  And to get to this issue of the

8 Complaint that we were just talking about, I would

9 move to strike everything after "yes" on line 17

10 continuing through line 18.

11             This references a damages quote from S.A.

12 Comunale Co., Inc. and that's -- I move on the

13 grounds that it's hearsay.  To the extent that it

14 refers to the attachments to the Complaint, pleadings

15 are not admissible in evidence, and we also do not

16 think that this is relevant to this case any longer

17 now that Mr. Enyart has dismissed his claim for any

18 damages, and it has no probative value as well

19 because this is a report referred to that postdates,

20 you know, the actual offense in this case by a number

21 of months.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt.

23             MR. WHITT:  Your Honor, the quote is not

24 being offered for its proof in the sense that

25 Mr. Doringo is correct that the Complainant is not
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1 seeking an award of damages.  The quote is simply

2 being offered to establish that the Complainant did,

3 in fact, sustain damages.

4             And on cross-examination, the witness was

5 asked a number of questions about the condition of

6 the pump house and so forth, so this quote would be

7 relevant to that line of inquiry as well.

8             MR. DORINGO:  May I respond very briefly,

9 your Honor?

10             THE EXAMINER:  You may.

11             MR. DORINGO:  I would just say that

12 doesn't answer the hearsay question.  This is a quote

13 provided by somebody who Mr. Enyart decided they

14 weren't going to call at this hearing.  So we have

15 had no opportunity to ask them questions at hearing,

16 and this is sort of blatant hearsay.  Even if they

17 had shown up, it wouldn't fix that this document

18 itself is hearsay in the first place.  Thank you.

19             THE EXAMINER:  I'm going to have to think

20 on this one, so go to your next.

21             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  Your Honor, the

22 next one begins at -- actually at the very bottom of

23 Page 6 at line 23 beginning with "Why not" and ending

24 with on Page 7 at line 15 with the word "no."  And

25 the basis here is the Rule 408 settlement protected
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1 question that we've been discussing related to

2 Exhibit -- what is now Exhibit 6B, lists colloquy

3 here, refers to all discussions between to Mr. Lindow

4 and Mr. Enyart or his counsel regarding settlement of

5 his claim.

6             THE EXAMINER:  I'm going to defer ruling

7 on this until I rule on the admissibility of 6B.

8             MR. DORINGO:  Understood.  Thank you.

9 Next and continuing on Page 7, and this is the

10 very -- it's the very similar issue with the one we

11 just discussed for the S.A. Comunale quote.

12             So beginning at line 17 of Page 7, we

13 would move to strike everything after the word

14 "Partially."  So beginning with that sentence, it

15 starts with "As documented" and ending in "$34,000 to

16 prepare all the damage" on line 21.  Again, same

17 bases as we had for the other quote.  This is

18 hearsay.  It's not relevant to this case.  It's

19 prejudicial to us, same arguments here.

20             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt.

21             MR. WHITT:  In addition to what I stated

22 before, your Honor, we just heard cross-examination

23 of the witness as well on the theme that this witness

24 doesn't really know what was going on at his property

25 as if the witness shouldn't be believed about
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1 anything that he says or that the burst pipes are

2 merely a figment of his imagination.

3             These documents again are consistent with

4 the idea that the Complainant, in fact, sustained

5 damages.  We're not attempting to prove in this

6 proceeding that those damages are $18,000 or

7 $180,000.  None of that really matters, but it

8 corroborates the event that occurred on the dates in

9 question.

10             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Withholding on that

11 one just as I am with the S.A. Comunale.

12             MR. DORINGO:  Okay.

13             THE EXAMINER:  Any others?

14             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, your Honor, the rest

15 of these go back to the 6B issue, Exhibit 6B issue,

16 so I'll let you know and I assume we'll reserve

17 ruling on those.  The next one is at Page 9, lines 9

18 to 10.  We move to strike the sentence "No,

19 Mr. Lindow's letter only says..." and continues from

20 there and ends in "system error," again, under the

21 same ruling that we now applied to what's been marked

22 as Exhibit 6B.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Does that start with the

24 "No" or "Mr. Lindow"?

25             MR. DORINGO:  I'm sorry, to be clear, it
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1 would start with "Mr. Lindow" and end with "error" in

2 quotes.

3             THE EXAMINER:  That will depend on my

4 ruling on 6B.

5             MR. DORINGO:  Then the next one is same

6 Page 9, lines 13 to 14 beginning with after "Yes."

7 So I guess beginning with "Mr. Lindow" and ending

8 with "2018."  Same basis.  I'm sorry, I'll let you --

9             THE EXAMINER:  No, that's okay.

10             MR. DORINGO:  The last one is at Page 10,

11 lines 5 to 6, and we would just be moving to strike

12 everything after the comma on line 5.  So we would be

13 moving to strike "Since Mr. Lindow attributes the

14 cause of the disconnection to a system error" which

15 is again a reference to that letter that is attached

16 to the Complaint.

17             THE EXAMINER:  So by my count, I have

18 deferred ruling on six motions to strike.  Does that

19 comport with your notes?

20             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, that does.  As I

21 understand it, that would be all of the settlement

22 discussion motions and then the one regarding S.A.

23 Comunale and the other one regarding the quote from I

24 think it was North Coast Fire.

25             THE EXAMINER:  Yes.  So those are your
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1 motions to strike.  I am going to defer my ruling to

2 that until after lunch.

3             Mr. Whitt, you're not going to close your

4 case until after lunch until I rule on that, just so

5 you're sure I'm not trumping on your rights to

6 present your case.

7             MR. WHITT:  Right.

8             THE EXAMINER:  I will defer my ruling on

9 the admissibility in general of Complainant's Exhibit

10 1 because I want to look into the rulings.  So let's

11 for the moment either move on to 2A or go ahead and

12 break for lunch, whichever.  I'm going to leave that

13 up to you all.

14             MR. WHITT:  Can I just throw another

15 curve ball, your Honor?  Perhaps it gets us closer to

16 resolution of 6B.  And that is this:  To the extent

17 the Company is concerned that 6B reflects a

18 settlement position in terms of a specific monetary

19 offer for settlement strategy, what have you, we

20 could probably agree to do some redactions so that

21 that information doesn't appear publicly.

22             But in terms of the underlying factual

23 representations made in that letter, those wouldn't

24 be subject to any settlement privilege.  Underlying

25 facts are never subject to nondisclosure just because
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1 at some point the parties talk about settling a case.

2             THE EXAMINER:  That's something I'm going

3 to be looking into and making a ruling on this

4 admissibility of 6B and the motion to strike.

5             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.

6             MR. DORINGO:  And can I just respond very

7 briefly?

8             THE EXAMINER:  Sure.

9             MR. DORINGO:  I was just going to say the

10 Rule 408 protects.  It doesn't just protect the

11 numbers, it protects conduct, the statements in the

12 furtherance of settlement, and that's what the rest

13 of that letter is and that's all I'll say on that.

14             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.  You know what,

15 we're going to take a break for lunch, then we're

16 going to come back and determine whether or not the

17 exhibits that have been moved will be admitted into

18 the record.

19             We're going to break... Sorry, I'm

20 debating.  We'll break for an hour until 1:30.  Can I

21 tell time right?  Yes, 1:30.  We'll go back at that

22 time on the record and make some rulings.

23             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.

24             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.

25             (At 12:26 a lunch recess was taken until
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1 1:30.)

2             THE EXAMINER:  We were briefly off the

3 record, and I offered counsel the opportunity to

4 reargue or present additional arguments on the issues

5 we discussed just going off the record.  Mr. Doringo

6 had indicated that he did not.  Mr. Whitt indicated

7 that he would prefer to wait until I issued my

8 rulings.

9             Could you please deny or confirm my

10 representations, gentlemen.

11             MR. DORINGO:  I can confirm that's

12 accurate on my part.

13             MR. WHITT:  Likewise, your Honor.

14             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  And what we do have

15 before us currently is the admissibility of what has

16 been marked as Complainant Exhibit 6B which is

17 Attachment B to the Complaint, as well as 6

18 individual motions to strike testimony.

19             I just wanted to start off by repeating

20 what I said earlier which is that the motions to

21 strike really should have been raised and presented

22 prior to Mr. Enyart's examination.  For that matter,

23 the question of whether or not an attachment to the

24 Complaint was a document produced during settlement

25 discussions would have been better raised prior to
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1 the hearing and should have been raised prior to

2 examination.

3             Second, I would like to note that we are

4 not strictly bound by the Rules of Evidence, but we

5 are bound by our own rules, and our own rule

6 4901-1-26(E) states that evidence of furnishing or

7 offering or promising to furnish or accepting or

8 offering or promising to accept a valuable

9 consideration in compromising or attempting to

10 compromise a disputed matter in a Commission

11 proceeding is not admissible to prove liability for

12 or invalidity of the dispute.  Evidence of conduct or

13 statements made in a compromised negotiations is

14 likewise not available.

15             This rule does not require the exclusion

16 of any evidence otherwise discoverable merely because

17 it is presented in the course of compromised

18 negotiations.  And this rule also does not require

19 exclusion when the evidence is offered for another

20 valid purpose.

21             With that rule and my prior statement in

22 mind and based on the arguments by the parties, I'll

23 start with the attachment -- I'll start with Exhibit

24 6B, attachments to the Complaint are not evidence.

25 And while Felton versus Felton, 79 Ohio St. 3d --
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1 what's the rest of the citation -- 34 1997 does not

2 specifically speak to attachments to the Complaint,

3 the Commission has as a practice viewed attachments

4 to the Complaint as part of the Complaint.  As such,

5 attachments to the Complaint are not evidence, and 6B

6 is not admitted to the record as evidence.

7             With regard to the motions to strike,

8 before I rule on them, I want to confirm the bounds

9 of those motions.  So if you would just confirm,

10 Mr. Doringo, that the first motion to strike that

11 we're talking about is on Mr. Enyart's Direct

12 Testimony Page 6, line 17 beginning with "S.A." and

13 ending as "Exhibit A," does that --

14             MR. DORINGO:  That is correct, thank you.

15             THE EXAMINER:  And the basis for your

16 motion to strike was hearsay and relevance; is that

17 correct?

18             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, yes, hearsay,

19 relevance and I think also baked into that sort of

20 prejudicial and not probative because this is a quote

21 that came months after the events that are at issue

22 in this case, but I think that rounds out my issue.

23             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  That motion is

24 denied.

25             The second motion was starting on that



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

94

1 same page, Page 6, with line 33, question 34, and

2 moving through to Page 7, line 15 and the answer No.

3 38.

4             MR. DORINGO:  That is correct.

5             THE EXAMINER:  That motion is granted.

6             MR. WHITT:  I'm sorry, what was the line

7 number on Page 7?

8             THE EXAMINER:  Line 15, the answer to

9 question 38.

10             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.

11             THE EXAMINER:  The third motion to strike

12 begins on Page 7, line 17 with "As documented" and

13 continues through line 21 ending with "to repair all

14 the damage."

15             MR. DORINGO:  That is correct.

16             THE EXAMINER:  That motion is denied.

17             Motion to strike No. 4 begins on Page 9,

18 line 9 starting with "Mr. Lindow's letter" and goes

19 through line 10 ending with "system error"; is that

20 correct?

21             MR. DORINGO:  That's correct.

22             THE EXAMINER:  That motion is denied.

23             The next motion to strike was made with

24 regard to Page 9, line 13 starting with "Mr. Lindow's

25 letter" and ending in "2018" on line 14; is that
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1 correct?

2             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, that's correct.

3             THE EXAMINER:  That motion is denied.

4             The final motion to strike that we

5 discussed is starting on Page 10, line 5 after the

6 comma starting with the word "since" and going

7 through the entirety of line 6 ending in "system

8 error."

9             MR. DORINGO:  That's correct.

10             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.  That motion is

11 also denied.

12             To be very clear, you are welcome to

13 brief this issue and these rulings as is your right

14 under Commission rules.  The Commission may address

15 them as they deem necessary in the Opinion and Order,

16 but these are my rulings.

17             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.

18             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.

19             THE EXAMINER:  I believe that takes us

20 back to the question of whether or not Complainant's

21 Exhibit 1 will be admitted to the record.

22 Mr. Doringo, you had made an objection based on your

23 motions to strike.  Was there a different rationale

24 for objecting to the admission of Mr. Enyart's

25 testimony?
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1             MR. DORINGO:  No, no.  Sorry, my

2 objections were limited to the portions of the

3 testimony that I targeted in the motion to strike,

4 but those have been resolved at this point.

5             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  So subject to your

6 motion to strike and the rulings made thereon,

7 Complainant Exhibit 1 is admitted to the record.

8             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

9             THE EXAMINER:  Continuing on to

10 Complainant Exhibit 2A, 2B, and 2C, are there any

11 objections to the admission of those audio

12 recordings?

13             MR. DORINGO:  Let me just reiterate the

14 objections that we discussed while we were playing

15 those back and before we played them back, I

16 understand your rulings on those.  Subject to the

17 objections, nothing further from us on those Exhibits

18 2A, 2B, and 2C.

19             THE EXAMINER:  Again, noting your

20 objections and noting the rulings on those objections

21 and motions to strike, Complainant Exhibits 2A, 2B

22 and 2C are admitted.

23             (EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

24             THE EXAMINER:  Complainant Exhibit 2 was

25 marked.  Subject to our previous discussion,
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1 Mr. Doringo, you had indicated that if Complainant

2 Exhibit 2 is admitted, that you would like Ohio

3 Edison Exhibit 10 to also be admitted.  I should have

4 addressed that before we went off the record, but how

5 are we going to handle this?  Do you have an

6 objection to the admission of Complainant's Exhibit

7 2?

8             MR. DORINGO:  I do not subject to the

9 admission of Ohio Edison Exhibit 10.  I don't know if

10 Mr. Whitt would be willing to agree to that or if I

11 need to do it separately in our case, but that's our

12 position.

13             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt, let's go with

14 seeing if we can stipulate it.  And after that, we

15 can argue about it.  How do you feel about Ohio

16 Edison Exhibit 10?

17             MR. WHITT:  I won't stipulate, but I

18 won't object, how's that?

19             THE EXAMINER:  That's a very nice

20 distinction that I will accept.  Thank you very much.

21 So Complainant Exhibit 2 is admitted.

22             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

23             THE EXAMINER:  Just to cover my tracks,

24 we will mark the document previously suggested to be

25 marked as Ohio Edison Exhibit 10 and it will also be
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1 deemed admitted.

2             (EXHIBIT MARKED AND ADMITTED INTO

3 EVIDENCE.)

4             THE EXAMINER:  I better write that down

5 before I forget it.  Okay.  Complainant's Exhibit 3,

6 any objection?

7             MR. DORINGO:  No, your Honor.  Those

8 are -- I'm sorry, those are the Second --

9             THE EXAMINER:  Yes, Second Request for

10 Production of Documents.  Okay, that is admitted.

11             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

12             THE EXAMINER:  And Complainant Exhibit 4,

13 Ohio Edison's Request for Third Production of

14 Documents, is there an objection?

15             MR. DORINGO:  No, your Honor.

16             THE EXAMINER:  Complainant's Exhibit 4 is

17 admitted to the record.

18             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

19             THE EXAMINER:  That takes us to

20 Complainant's Exhibit 5 which is Ohio Edison's

21 Scheduled Rates for Electric Service PUCO No. 11.

22 Are there any objections to this?

23             MR. DORINGO:  No.  I mean, I think -- I

24 don't know if it's necessary because I'm sure the

25 Commission will notice this exhibit, but we don't
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1 have any objections if you want to put it in the

2 record.

3             THE EXAMINER:  All right.  Complainant's

4 Exhibit 5 is admitted to the record.

5             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

6             THE EXAMINER:  Does that take care of

7 your exhibits, Mr. Whitt?

8             MR. WHITT:  I think so, your Honor,

9 although I want to make sure I understand the ruling

10 on Exhibit 6B, and I just want to make clear that we

11 are not arguing that the document is admissible

12 solely because it's attached to the Complaint.  That

13 is not our argument.

14             The document is independently admissible

15 on several grounds.  It's admitted, first of all, in

16 the pleadings to be an authentic copy of a letter

17 that was sent to the Complainant.  The witness was

18 asked questions about whether he received such a

19 letter, and he said that he did.

20             The letter represents the admission of a

21 party-opponent and is not hearsay.  Under 801(d),

22 Section 2, statements that are not hearsay to

23 admission by a party-opponent, the statement is

24 offered against a party and is, (A), the party's own

25 statement in either an individual or representative
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1 capacity, and I'll stop right there because that's

2 clearly what Exhibit B is.  It is a statement by an

3 Ohio Edison representative pertaining directly to the

4 subject matter of this case.

5             The hearsay rule in further defining

6 admission refers to under 801(d)(2)(B), a statement

7 of which the party has manifested in a document or

8 belief in its truth; (C), a statement by a person

9 authorized by the party to make a statement

10 concerning the subject; and (D), a statement by the

11 party injured or concerning the matter within the

12 scope of the agency or employment made during the

13 existence of the relationship.

14             So under several categories defining what

15 is not hearsay, those categories plainly describe

16 this letter.  So I wanted to make that clear for the

17 record.  And to the extent the Bench wishes to issue

18 further rulings beyond the issue of whether the

19 document is admissible merely because it's attached

20 to the Complaint, we understand that you've ruled on

21 that issue, but there's also this independent grounds

22 for admissibility that I'm not sure you've had time

23 to delve into, and I guess I'll stop there for the

24 moment.

25             MR. DORINGO:  Can I respond briefly, your
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1 Honor?

2             THE EXAMINER:  You may.

3             MR. DORINGO:  Yeah, I don't believe I

4 raised a hearsay argument on Exhibit 6B to the

5 Complaint because I recognize the exceptions that

6 Mr. Whitt pointed out, but those don't resolve the

7 question of the admissibility of settlement

8 communications under the Commission's rule or the

9 Rules of Evidence.  And so I don't believe those

10 impact the resolution of that issue by your Honor.

11             Separately, you know, we still do have

12 double hearsay problems.  I mean, I think we still

13 with that attachment as attached to the Complaint,

14 because the Complaint itself in its allegations

15 regarding that attachment are just those, they're

16 just allegations, they are not evidence, but we've

17 covered that issue at length.  I think Felton v.

18 Felton speaks to that directly, and I think I can

19 leave it there.

20             THE EXAMINER:  Go ahead, Mr. Whitt.

21             MR. WHITT:  Your Honor, again, with

22 regard to the rule about settlement, what the rule --

23 and the Commission rule is substantially the same as

24 the Ohio Evidence Rule, and there are plenty of cases

25 in the annotations explaining how merely including a
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1 fact in settlement communications doesn't make that

2 fact inadmissible.

3             In fact, the staff notes to the Ohio

4 Evidence Rules say regarding the acknowledgment in

5 the rule that just because something is in a

6 settlement communication doesn't require it to be

7 excluded.  The staff notes recognizes that without

8 the safeguard, there's a possibility of abuse of the

9 rule by presenting discoverable evidence in the

10 course of settlement negotiations in order to ensure

11 its exclusion at trial.

12             And moreover, if you look at the letter

13 itself, this is not -- the word settlement doesn't

14 appear anywhere in this document.  This is not some

15 response to some demand or anything else by

16 Mr. Enyart.  This is something the Company

17 unilaterally drafted, sent it to Mr. Enyart, and they

18 describe it as its investigation of the incident.

19 All of this is to serve as a summary of those

20 findings.  And then it goes through and lists various

21 factual statements in the letter which again aren't

22 inadmissible simply because they're contained in this

23 letter.

24             So to the extent the policy of the rule

25 is to encourage settlement negotiations, this letter
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1 isn't the product of settlement negotiations.  It was

2 unilaterally sent to Mr. Enyart before he has

3 counsel, by the way, and ends up in his file.  Again,

4 it's attached to the Complaint.  Its authenticity is

5 admitted in the Complaint and admissions and

6 pleadings become binding in the case whether it's

7 evidence or not.

8             What the purpose of the pleadings are is

9 to clarify what the parties agree on versus what they

10 dispute.  And you know, there's I suppose the basic

11 issue of estoppel applied here as well insofar as the

12 Company has in writing taken a position, represented

13 certain facts and ultimately then decided it wants to

14 walk away from those facts and instead rely on the

15 testimony of a person who had nothing to do with this

16 incident other than look at some documents and try to

17 put a more favorable spin on the situation than is

18 obvious from Mr. Lindow's letter, who by the way I

19 think counsel would stipulate is a lawyer.

20             And if Mr. Lindow truly believed this was

21 a settlement communication, he would do what lawyers

22 would normally do which is put a big bold stamp on

23 the front page that says Rule 408 Offer To

24 Compromise, all the other usual language.  Again,

25 none of that is here.  So we would like the Bench to
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1 take those factors into consideration.

2             THE EXAMINER:  I'll give you one more

3 statement, Mr. Doringo.

4             MR. DORINGO:  Okay.

5             THE EXAMINER:  If you have one.

6             MR. DORINGO:  Briefly.  I think we've

7 already talked about the settlement issue and whether

8 this document is covered by the Commission Rule in

9 408, I don't want to rehash that, but just to respond

10 to what Mr. Whitt said about the facts discussed in

11 this letter, it's not that -- what the rule means is

12 that you can still use other means of discovery to

13 get at those same facts, right.

14             You can get it through interrogatories or

15 RFAs or Requests for Production, but you can't sort

16 of clothe those facts in sort of nondisclosure

17 protection merely by reciting them in the settlement

18 communication which is not what happened here, and

19 Mr. Whitt had opportunity to take any discovery that

20 he wanted.

21             Then lastly, I mean, look, he talks about

22 the change of position.  That's what discovery is

23 for.  Facts change.  And in light of those facts, the

24 Company's position changed somewhat in this case, and

25 that's how it goes sometimes.  And with that, I can
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1 be done.

2             THE EXAMINER:  I feel this is an

3 invitation that I'm going to be taken up on.  I will

4 just repeat you are free to brief my rulings with the

5 Commission.  And because I don't feel like taking

6 another giant break based on my reading over the

7 break and the arguments that you just made, excising

8 the very last paragraph of this letter that begins

9 with "Ohio Edison" and ends with "property," a

10 paragraph that smacks of a possibility of being a

11 settlement discussion --

12             MR. WHITT:  Which we're happy to redact.

13             THE EXAMINER:  -- that is taking an ax,

14 that is not coming in.  That paragraph is gone.

15 Otherwise, on its face, this is not obviously a

16 settlement communication.  This would have been a

17 very good thing to bring up prior to the questioning

18 of Mr. Enyart or prior to the hearing.

19             So I will modify my ruling that I

20 previously made, and I will say that Exhibit 6B as

21 redacted by the exclusion of the final paragraph

22 beginning with "Ohio Edison" and ending with

23 "property," 6B is admitted into evidence.

24             (EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

25             MR. WHITT:  Your Honor, I assume that the
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1 Complainant, we should assume the responsibility of

2 preparing a redacted exhibit and circulating that to

3 everyone including the court reporter?

4             THE EXAMINER:  Yes.  And for that matter,

5 if you just send it to the court reporter, she will

6 be filing to the record all of the exhibits that are

7 not just on the docket, and I would consider this an

8 independent exhibit.

9             MR. WHITT:  Okay.

10             THE EXAMINER:  So does that take care of

11 your exhibits, Mr. Whitt?

12             MR. WHITT:  Yes, your Honor.

13             THE EXAMINER:  Do you have anything

14 further to present?

15             MR. WHITT:  No, your Honor, the

16 Complainant has presented its case in chief.

17             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you, sir.

18             Mr. Doringo and Miss Watchorn, would you

19 like a moment before we move on to your case?

20             MR. DORINGO:  I'm prepared to move

21 forward.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Excellent.  Let's go about

23 doing that then.  Which of you will be presenting the

24 witness?

25             MR. DORINGO:  That would be me again,
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1 your Honor.  And so, yeah, we will go ahead and call

2 Princess Davis as our witness.

3             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Schmidt, if you would

4 promote the witness.

5             MR. SCHMIDT:  Miss Davis, you have been

6 promoted, if you could enable your audio and video.

7             THE EXAMINER:  Good morning, Miss Davis.

8             MS. DAVIS:  Good morning -- good

9 afternoon.

10             THE EXAMINER:  You're right, it is

11 afternoon.  I have to keep an eye on my meter.

12             MR. WHITT:  Which one?

13             THE EXAMINER:  Would you raise your right

14 hand for me?

15             (Witness placed under oath.)

16             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you very much.

17                         - - -

18                     PRINCESS DAVIS

19 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

20 examined and testified as follows:

21                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

22 By Mr. Doringo:

23        Q.   Good afternoon, Miss Davis.

24        A.   Hi.

25        Q.   Can you please introduce yourself to



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

108

1 everyone here?

2        A.   My name is Princess Davis, and I'm

3 currently employed with FirstEnergy as a Compliance

4 Specialist.

5        Q.   Miss Davis, do you have before you what

6 is marked as Ohio Edison Exhibit 1?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Could you please tell us what that is,

9 Ohio Edison Exhibit 1?

10        A.   Yes, that's my written testimony that was

11 filed with the Commission on 10-29 of 2019.

12        Q.   Was your Direct Testimony as it appears

13 in Ohio Edison Exhibit 1 prepared by you or at your

14 direction?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Do you have any changes to make to your

17 testimony as it appears in Ohio Edison Exhibit 1?

18        A.   I do not.

19        Q.   Is your testimony as it appears on Ohio

20 Edison Exhibit 1 truthful and accurate to the best of

21 your knowledge?

22        A.   Yes, it is.

23        Q.   And if I ask you the same questions that

24 appear in Ohio Edison Exhibit 1 this morning, would

25 your answers be the same?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   I should say to you this afternoon would

3 your answers be the same because I guess it could

4 have changed between this morning and this afternoon?

5        A.   Yes, they are the same.

6        Q.   Thank you.

7        A.   You're welcome.

8             MR. DORINGO:  At this time, your Honor,

9 we'd move to admit Ohio Edison Exhibit 1.

10             THE EXAMINER:  I will defer my ruling

11 until after cross.

12        Q.   Miss Davis, do you have before you what

13 has been marked as Davis Exhibit No. 2?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Will you please tell me what Ohio Edison

16 Exhibit 2 is.

17        A.   Exhibit 2 is the Customer Contact History

18 for the Unit UB.

19        Q.   When you say the Unit UB, could you tell

20 me what the Unit UB is.

21        A.   The Unit UB is for the address of 50

22 Newton Street, and these are the account records

23 associated to that account.

24        Q.   Did you review Ohio Edison Exhibit 2 in

25 preparing your Direct Testimony?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   I'd like to just direct you to Page 3 of

3 your Direct Testimony in Ohio Edison Exhibit 1 at

4 lines 6 to 13.  Just let me know when you're there.

5        A.   Sorry I got muted.  I'm there.

6        Q.   Do you see there that you reference

7 records you reviewed related to this case?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Is Ohio Edison Exhibit 2 one of the

10 records you referred to at Page 3, line 6 to 13 of

11 your testimony?

12             MR. WHITT:  Objection.

13             THE EXAMINER:  Basis?

14             MR. WHITT:  Well, I believe that the

15 Company is at this time attempting to supplement the

16 witness' Direct Testimony.  Had the Company wished to

17 expressly rely on these documents, they could have

18 and should have attached them to the testimony.

19             I recognize that many of these are the

20 same documents that many were just admitted as part

21 of the Complainant's Exhibits, so I grant that, but

22 this is somewhat unusual to put a witness on the

23 stand on direct and then attempt to supplement the

24 testimony with records that were not included as part

25 of the direct.
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1             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Doringo.

2             MR. DORINGO:  Yeah, I mean, these are

3 records that are -- one, these are records that are

4 already in evidence that were produced, geez, a year

5 ago, I mean, or more.  I think in most instances

6 they're referred to in Miss Davis's testimony that

7 we're going through and we'll show you.

8             And I don't know what's unusual about

9 authenticating documents through a witness that we

10 intend to place into evidence or how this is even

11 arguably in any way prejudicial to the Complainant in

12 this case.

13             THE EXAMINER:  I'm going to overrule the

14 objection to the extent that she's identifying

15 whether or not Ohio Edison Exhibit 2 is one of the

16 records about which she is talking about in that

17 question and answer on Page 3.

18             MR. WHITT:  Thank you, your Honor.  And I

19 suppose to save ourselves some time, I will just make

20 a continuing objection about questions to the witness

21 to authenticate documents.  I don't mean to be

22 hypertechnical about it.  This is probably not

23 prejudicial, but it is unusual to do what has been

24 done here which is just say in Direct Testimony "I

25 reviewed business records" but then not reveal those
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1 records until the day of hearing.

2             That's a problem when the other side is

3 trying to decide whether they need to take

4 depositions and what records are we talking about and

5 all of that rigamarole.  So I feel like I need to

6 make that point.  I gave my objection, I understand

7 opposing counsel's point, I understand your rulings,

8 I'll be quiet.

9             THE EXAMINER:  Just to clarify, these are

10 records that were produced to you during discovery,

11 correct?

12             MR. WHITT:  Yes.

13             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  The objection is

14 overruled.  You may continue.

15             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  I'm sorry, did

16 we mark it for identification?  Did we mark Ohio

17 Edison Exhibit 2 for identification?

18             THE EXAMINER:  It is marked.

19             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

20             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  Miss Davis, I

21 don't remember where I left off with you, so could I

22 have the last question before read.

23             (Record read.)

24             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  I'll go ahead

25 and ask that question again, Miss Davis.
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1        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) Is Ohio Edison Exhibit 2

2 one of the records you referred to at Page 3 of your

3 testimony at line 6 to 13?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   You can set that aside.  Do you have

6 before you, Miss Davis, what has been marked as Ohio

7 Edison Exhibit 4?

8        A.   Yes.

9             MR. DORINGO:  Your Honor, may we mark

10 this for identification at this time as Ohio Edison

11 Exhibit 4.

12             THE EXAMINER:  Does that have a Bate

13 stamp OE....

14             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, that would be helpful.

15             MR. WHITT:  I'm willing to -- I'm sorry

16 for interjecting, but it may actually be helpful for

17 all of us that Mr. Doringo sort of separate the

18 documents into discreet documents with labels.  And

19 notwithstanding my little soapbox speech a few

20 minutes ago, I would be willing to stipulate to the

21 admission of OE Exhibits 2 through I think it's 8 and

22 perhaps even we could call them Joint Exhibits 2

23 through 8 if we wish and stipulate to their admission

24 and further stipulate to their having been produced

25 here in discovery.
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1             THE EXAMINER:  We're going to let

2 Mr. Doringo introduce his exhibits as he wishes.  I

3 will take you up on that stipulation when we talk

4 about the admissibility, Mr. Whitt, but we're going

5 to allow Mr. Doringo to slide into his case as he

6 chooses.

7             Mr. Doringo, if you could tell me, is OE6

8 at the bottom for Exhibit 4?

9             MR. DORINGO:  That's correct.

10             THE EXAMINER:  I will let you otherwise

11 identify as you wish, but that piece of paper in my

12 hand is so marked as Ohio Edison Exhibit 4.

13             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

14             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.

15        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) Miss Davis, will you

16 please tell me what Ohio Edison Exhibit 4 is.

17        A.   Exhibit 4 is the Meter Reading Results

18 for the service address at 50 Newton Street, Unit UB.

19        Q.   Is Ohio Edison Exhibit 4 one of the

20 records you referred to at Page 3, line 6 through 13

21 of your testimony?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Thank you.  Do you have before you what

24 has been premarked as Ohio Edison Exhibit 6 which has

25 a Bates number of OE12 in the bottom right-hand
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1 corner?

2        A.   Yes.

3             MR. DORINGO:  Your Honor, we would ask to

4 mark that as Ohio Edison Exhibit 6.

5             THE EXAMINER:  Yes.  It's a two-page

6 document?

7             MR. DORINGO:  That's correct, and

8 continues from OE12 to OE13.

9             THE EXAMINER:  So marked.

10             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

11        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) Can you tell me,

12 Miss Davis, what OE Ohio Edison Exhibit 6 is.

13        A.   Yes, that is the Work Order Trackings for

14 the Block and the Unblock Orders for the service

15 address of 50 Newton Street, Unit UB.

16        Q.   Did you review Ohio Edison Exhibit 6 in

17 preparing your Direct Testimony?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   Is Ohio Edison Exhibit 6 one of the

20 records you referred to at Page 3, line 6 through 13

21 of your Direct Testimony?

22        A.   Yes, it is.

23        Q.   You can set that aside.  Do you have

24 before you, Miss Davis, what has been premarked as

25 Ohio Edison Exhibit 7 which bears a Bates number of
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1 OE14 to 15 in the bottom right-hand corner?

2        A.   Yes, I do.

3             MR. DORINGO:  Your Honor, we ask to mark

4 this as Ohio Edison Exhibit 7.

5             THE EXAMINER:  So marked.

6             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

7        Q.   (By Mr. Doringo) Would you please tell me

8 what Ohio Edison Exhibit 7 is, Miss Davis.

9        A.   Yes, that is a copy of the March 6th,

10 2018 Billing Statement for 50 Newton Street, Unit UB.

11        Q.   Did you review Ohio Edison Exhibit 7 in

12 preparing your Direct Testimony?  I'm sorry, I didn't

13 hear.  You broke up.

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Thank you.

16        A.   You're welcome.

17        Q.   Is Ohio Edison Exhibit 7 one of the

18 records you referred to at Page 3, line 6 through 13

19 of your testimony?

20        A.   Yes, it is.

21             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you.  Your Honor, at

22 this time, we would move Ohio Edison Exhibits 2, 4, 6

23 and 7 into evidence as well.

24             THE EXAMINER:  Mr. Whitt, do you want to

25 stick with your stipulation?



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

117

1             MR. WHITT:  No objection to the admission

2 of those exhibits.

3             THE EXAMINER:  I still like the

4 distinction.  Thank you.  Ohio Edison Exhibits 2, 4,

5 6 and 7 will be admitted.

6             (EXHIBITS ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

7             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you, your Honor.  And

8 just to make sure I didn't screw something up, I'm

9 not sure if I asked to mark Ohio Edison Exhibit 1 for

10 identification which is the testimony of Miss Davis,

11 and I would ask to do that just in case I didn't.

12             THE EXAMINER:  Fair enough.  It's so

13 marked, but I will not rule on its admissibility

14 until Miss Davis has been cross-examined.

15             MR. DORINGO:  Thank you, your Honor, I

16 will make Miss Davis available for cross.

17                         - - -

18                   CROSS-EXAMINATION

19 By Mr. Whitt:

20        Q.   Good afternoon, Miss Davis.

21        A.   Good afternoon.

22        Q.   Do you have in front of you a document

23 marked Ohio Edison Exhibit 3?

24        A.   Yes.

25        Q.   Was Ohio Edison Exhibit 3 one of the
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1 documents that you reviewed as part of your work in

2 this case?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Would the same be true with respect to

5 Ohio Edison Exhibit 5, if you have that with you?

6        A.   Just to clarify, I want to make sure

7 we're referring to the same document.  Ohio Edison

8 Exhibit 3 that I have is a List of Contact for Unit

9 U1 at 50 Newton Street; is that correct?

10        Q.   If you say so.  It appears to be as you

11 described it.  Bate stamp 04 and 05 at the bottom.

12        A.   Yes, okay.  I just wanted to clarify,

13 make sure we were looking at the same document.

14        Q.   Sure.  And Ohio Edison Exhibit 5 is Bate

15 stamped 07 at the end.  Do you have that document in

16 front of you?

17        A.   Yes, I do.

18        Q.   And is that a document that was -- that

19 you reviewed as part of your investigation?

20        A.   It is.

21        Q.   And do you have also a document marked

22 Ohio Edison Exhibit 8 and stamped 0E16 and 0E17 at

23 the bottom?

24        A.   Yes, I do.

25        Q.   Would those be documents that you
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1 reviewed as part of your investigation?

2        A.   Yes, it was.

3        Q.   Okay.  Now, one of the things I want to

4 do is confirm that I have the right documents matched

5 up with the right meters, if I could.  Well, let me

6 also ask were you present when there was discussion

7 of Exhibit 6B?

8        A.   No, I was not.

9        Q.   We'll go back to that.  Could you please

10 turn to Page 4 of your Direct Testimony.

11        A.   Yes, I have Page 4.

12        Q.   And at line 3 you say, "Ohio Edison

13 informed Complainant that the soonest electric

14 service that would begin under his accounts was the

15 next business day."  Do you see that?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Do you know whether Ohio Edison's tariff

18 provides for same day connections?

19        A.   Without looking at the tariff, I believe

20 that we do not have same day service on new services,

21 only on disconnect for nonpayments.

22        Q.   And service was being rendered to the

23 building on Newton Street at the time Mr. Enyart

24 called to have the bill switched into his name; is

25 that right?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And I'm wondering given that service was

3 already established, why the company couldn't simply

4 switch the accounts to Mr. Enyart's name as of

5 January 26th?

6        A.   The company business practice is always

7 next business day on an account, on a new service.

8        Q.   Why is that?

9        A.   I'm not able to answer that.

10             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.  She answered,

11 your Honor.

12             THE EXAMINER:  All right.  We'll continue

13 with the answer.

14        Q.   (By Mr. Whitt) In the ordinary course of

15 business when there is a transfer of service from one

16 individual to another, is it the company's business

17 practice to physically disconnect the customer, the

18 old customer, and then physically reconnect a new

19 customer?

20             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.  Foundation.

21             THE EXAMINER:  Sustained.

22             MR. DORINGO:  I can't ask her about the

23 company's business practices?

24             THE EXAMINER:  You can, but you can't

25 provide the answer in your question.
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1             MR. WHITT:  Well, I'm crossing her.

2             THE EXAMINER:  Oh, that's true.  You can

3 lead on cross.

4             MR. DORINGO:  But my point, your Honor,

5 is there's been no testimony that there's a practice

6 of disconnecting customers physically before hooking

7 the next one up.

8             MR. WHITT:  That was the question.  I

9 mean, is that what the company does.

10             THE EXAMINER:  There's the question that

11 you ask then.  So go ahead and reask the question

12 exactly as you just did.

13        Q.   (By Mr. Whitt) Sure.  In order to

14 transfer an existing service from an old customer to

15 the new customer, is it necessary or not to

16 physically disconnect and then reconnect service?

17        A.   It's not necessary, no.

18        Q.   And I'm still on Page 4 of your

19 testimony, lines 7 through 11, you identify the two

20 active meters at the property; do you see that?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Again, I wanted to make sure that I have

23 the right records with the right meters.  Can you

24 look at the document in front of you that's Bate

25 stamped 07.  I believe that's Ohio Edison Exhibit 5.
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1        A.   I have that.

2        Q.   You have that?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And if you look at the number that's in

5 the Device column of Exhibit 5, it starts with 6740,

6 do you see that?  Do you see the number in the Device

7 column?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Okay.  And that device is associated with

10 meter U1; is that correct?

11        A.   That is correct.

12        Q.   And still on Ohio Edison Exhibit 5, if we

13 look at the top of the page where it says Contract

14 Account, there's an account number ending in the

15 digits 941.  Do you see that?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Now if we go to Pages OE4 and 5 which

18 would be Ohio Edison Exhibit 3....

19        A.   I have those in front of me.

20        Q.   The Contract Account number that is shown

21 on Ohio Edison Exhibit 3 is the same Contract Account

22 number shown on Exhibit OE5, correct?

23        A.   That's correct.

24        Q.   So OE Exhibit 3 also pertains to meter

25 U1, correct?
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1        A.   That is correct.

2        Q.   Back to OE Exhibit 5, if you look at

3 there's some entries that appear to be in reverse

4 chronological order and I'm starting at the bottom,

5 I'd like you to work your way up to the entry on

6 1-26-2018.  Do you see that?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   And the next entry is dated 1-29-2018; is

9 that correct?

10        A.   No.  The document that I'm looking at, it

11 goes from 1-26-18 to 1-31-18.

12        Q.   Are you on -- Does your page have OE7 at

13 the bottom?

14        A.   No, I'm sorry, it has OE5 at the bottom.

15        Q.   And I know this is confusing.  We want OE

16 Exhibit 5 which at the bottom is 7.

17        A.   I'm sorry.  Yes, I have that now, which

18 is the Meter Reading Results, and yes, I do show

19 those dates, the 1-26-18 and the 1-29-18.

20        Q.   Okay.  And it would appear from this

21 document, wouldn't it, that there was no usage

22 registered on meter U1 between January 26th and

23 January 29th, 2018, correct?

24        A.   That, I'm not able to determine because

25 the first -- the line item of 1-26-18 is an estimated
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1 reading and the line on 29 -- 1-29 is an actual

2 reading.

3        Q.   Those numbers are the same, correct?

4        A.   Correct.

5        Q.   Still on Page 4 of your testimony, the Q

6 and A at lines 12 through 15, you say that electric

7 service was being provided to the property as of

8 January 26th, 2018; do you see that?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   And your answer is "Yes, electric service

11 was being provided to the property under the prior

12 owner's accounts as of January 26th, 2018."  My

13 question is how do you know that?

14        A.   The account was still active for the

15 prior customer's name at that point.

16        Q.   At what point?

17        A.   On January the 26th of 2018.

18        Q.   Okay.  And so there was no reason for the

19 company to disconnect service at that property in

20 order to accept Mr. Enyart as a new customer of

21 record; is that correct?

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   And I'm at the bottom of Page 4 of your

24 testimony on line 19, starting at the end of line 19,

25 you say that "Ohio Edison completed the prior owner's



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

125

1 move-out request at approximately 9:52 a.m. on

2 January 29, 2018."  And my question is what exactly

3 did Ohio Edison do at 9:52 a.m. on January 29th,

4 2018?

5        A.   That is when the serviceman completed the

6 Notification Order in his handheld unit.

7        Q.   What does that involve?

8        A.   Typically, it's the serviceman is at the

9 location, he's entering a reading in on the order and

10 closing that order out as completed.

11        Q.   What was being ordered here?  Was --

12        A.   The move-out -- I'm sorry, go ahead.

13        Q.   Well, what, I guess, is involved in a

14 move-out request?  What does that mean to you?

15        A.   A move-out request is simply the prior

16 customer requesting to no longer be the customer of

17 record to a premises.

18        Q.   And what did Ohio Edison have to do to

19 complete that request?

20        A.   For this specific customer, we had to

21 obtain a reading to close out the billing.

22        Q.   Okay.

23        A.   Now, the order, originally we didn't have

24 a new signer.  Once we received the new signer, then

25 a reading is all that was necessary.
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1        Q.   What do you mean by new signer?

2        A.   Mr. Enyart.

3        Q.   Okay.  And you go on to say that the

4 move-out request, it was completed on January 29th,

5 2018 with an effective date of January 26th, 2018.

6 And my question is what, if any, significance is

7 there to the effective date of the move-out request?

8        A.   The only significance is that that's the

9 date that the prior occupant requested to no longer

10 be customer of record.  So if we don't get a reading

11 specifically on that date, we close it out, but it's

12 still effective the date that the customer requested

13 to stop being billed.

14        Q.   Is it the case then that the prior owner,

15 their move-out request was completed on January 26th,

16 2018, that Mr. Enyart became the new customer of

17 record also as of January 26th, 2018?

18        A.   No.

19        Q.   Who was the customer?

20        A.   Between the 26th and the 29th, there was

21 no customer of record.

22        Q.   Why is that?

23        A.   Because Mr. Enyart's service was

24 typically -- or was to begin on January 29th, and the

25 prior owner's was to end on January 26th.
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1        Q.   Well, Mr. Enyart also called on

2 January 26th and requested service in his name as of

3 that day, correct?

4        A.   Correct.

5        Q.   And why couldn't Ohio Edison accomplish

6 that?

7        A.   We do not do orders for a move-out and

8 move-in the same date.  It's always the next business

9 day.

10        Q.   Is there some technical limitation that

11 prevents the company from doing something in the

12 computers, I suppose, to indicate that an account is

13 associated with a new person?

14        A.   I'm not sure that I understand that

15 question.  I'm also not sure that that's something

16 that I'm able to answer as far as the business

17 practice and what the company business policy is on a

18 move-in and a move-out.

19        Q.   Nobody, neither the prior owner nor

20 Mr. Enyart, asked the Company to disconnect service

21 on January 26th; is that correct?

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   And as far as you know, neither the prior

24 owner nor Mr. Enyart asked for the service to be

25 disconnected at any time; is that right?
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1        A.   Well, I think we're talking about

2 terminology.  The prior owner would not -- maybe not

3 specify the words disconnect service but they're

4 calling to cancel service.  If there's not a new

5 order for someone else, then the company is going to

6 generate an order to block the service, meaning

7 disconnect the service.

8        Q.   So is the term blocking service and

9 disconnection, can we use those terms synonymously?

10 Would that be accurate?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   And that means that essentially the

13 premises is de-energized at the meter; is that what

14 that means?

15        A.   I'm sorry, yes, that is correct.  I'm

16 sorry, can I take a break?  I have a UPS person at

17 the door.  I'm sorry.

18             THE EXAMINER:  Yes, we'll go off the

19 record.

20             (Off the record.)

21             THE EXAMINER:  Let's go back on the

22 record.  Mr. Whitt, would you like your last question

23 reread?

24             MR. WHITT:  I think she answered it.

25             (Record read.)
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1        Q.   (By Mr. Whitt) Could you now go with me

2 to the page that's stamped at the bottom OE and a

3 bunch of zeros and then 12.  I think that's a

4 document marked as Ohio Edison Exhibit 6.

5             THE EXAMINER:  Yes, you're looking for

6 Ohio Edison Exhibit 6.

7        A.   Okay, I do have that.

8        Q.   Thank you.  It's Pages 12 and 13, I

9 believe.  I want to start with 12.

10        A.   Okay.

11        Q.   If you look at the very bottom of this I

12 guess spreadsheet or printout, there appears to be an

13 entry with a date of 1-25-2018; do you see that?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   And in the Field Contents section of the

16 far right, there's a comment that says Work Created.

17 Do you see that?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   And I'm assuming that the Work Created

20 referenced on this document is the prior owner's

21 move-out request; is that right?

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   Okay.  And if you go up on these entries

24 up to the -- there's an entry dated -- actually a

25 couple of entries dated 1-29-2018.
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And I'm looking at the -- As I go up,

3 there's another one.  Well, the first entry dated

4 1-29-2018, the note says "Work Loaded to Handheld."

5 Do you see that?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   And then it appears a short time later on

8 1-29-2018 there's a note that says "Work Completed in

9 Field."  Do you see that?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   And the Work Completed in Field on

12 January 29th, 2018 was the prior owner's move-out

13 request, correct?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   If we go to Page OE13, which is also OE

16 Exhibit 6, the entry at the very bottom is dated

17 1-26-2018, and it also has a notation of Work

18 Created; is that right?

19        A.   That's correct.

20        Q.   And this was Mr. Enyart's request to have

21 service placed in his name, correct?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   And if we go up to 1-29-2018, you see the

24 entry that says "Work Completed in Field"?

25        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   What did the technician have to do in the

2 field to accommodate the transfer of service from the

3 old owner to Mr. Enyart?

4        A.   Just enter in a reading and complete the

5 order in his handheld unit is my only knowledge of

6 what they do.

7        Q.   Do you know whether that was done here?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   If we go up a couple lines after it says

10 "Work Completed in Field," there's an entry on 1-29

11 that says "Error in Processing."  Do you see that?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   What does that mean?

14        A.   Error in Processing -- I'm sorry, Error

15 in Processing just means that something didn't occur

16 in the normal path, and in this case it was because

17 the orders were not completed in the correct order by

18 this technician.

19        Q.   Okay.  If we go up, we keep going up to

20 on the dates, there are some entries dated

21 February 1st, 2018 with a notation date for

22 Notification Completion, and the date referenced is

23 February 1st, 2018; is that correct?

24        A.   Yes.

25        Q.   And the completion being referred to here
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1 is completion of the work created on January 26th; is

2 that right?

3        A.   It appears that they're completing the

4 notification or they're not actual work.

5        Q.   What's the difference?

6        A.   Well, one is the order.  The notification

7 is just the order.  When it's completed in the field,

8 it says Completed in Field.

9        Q.   I think that would happen instantly if

10 we're dealing with handheld computers?

11             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.

12             THE EXAMINER:  Rephrase your question,

13 Mr. Whitt.

14        Q.   Can you think of a reason why a task

15 completed on January 29th, 2018 -- why the

16 notification of completion of that task would not

17 appear in the company's records until February 1st of

18 2018?

19        A.   It's not uncommon for us to have orders

20 that have been completed in the field but are not

21 completed in the office on the notification.

22        Q.   Okay.  So we can't necessarily rely on

23 the office records to tell us when work was done in

24 the field; is that correct?

25        A.   No, that's not correct.
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1             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.

2        Q.   What did I get incorrect about it?

3        A.   If work is completed in the field, it

4 will state Work Completed in Field.

5        Q.   Okay.  On Page 5 of your testimony, the

6 question and answer beginning at line 15 where you

7 describe the error in processing --

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   -- are you there?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   Is it your testimony that whenever a

12 customer indicates that they're moving or no longer

13 wish to be the customer of record, that such a

14 request would automatically generate an order to

15 disconnect service at the meter or block service at

16 the meter?

17        A.   Not in all circumstances, no.

18        Q.   What about in -- Well, is it your

19 testimony that in this case when the prior owner

20 indicated that he was -- had sold the building or no

21 longer wished to have service in his name, that

22 request generated an order in the company's system to

23 block or disconnect service?

24             MR. DORINGO:  Objection to the extent it

25 misrepresents the prior testimony you already
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1 covered.

2             THE EXAMINER:  Overruled.

3        A.   I'm sorry, could you repeat the question?

4        Q.   I think what your testimony says at lines

5 17 and 18, and I'm just trying to make sure I'm

6 understanding this correctly, when the prior owner

7 called on January 25th to indicate he no longer

8 wished to be the customer of record, that that prior

9 owner's request generated a work order for the

10 company to physically disconnect or block service?

11        A.   That's correct.

12        Q.   Okay.  In January, correct?

13        A.   January the 25th.

14        Q.   The policy changed -- I'm sorry, does the

15 policy change seasonally?

16        A.   I'm sorry, I'm not understanding what

17 you're asking.

18        Q.   Let me just ask it -- let me cut to the

19 chase.  I'm trying to understand why the Company has

20 a process where work orders are generated to

21 automatically disconnect service in the middle of

22 winter.

23             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.  That's not the

24 testimony.  Foundation.

25             THE EXAMINER:  Oh, that's a tough one.  I
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1 know it's tedious, Mr. Whitt, but break that question

2 down.

3        Q.   (By Mr. Whitt) What is the rationale for

4 generating work orders to automatically disconnect

5 service in the winter?

6             MR. DORINGO:  Same objection and on

7 foundation grounds.

8             THE EXAMINER:  You know what, she can

9 answer it to the extent that she has already

10 testified that there is no seasonal difference.

11        A.   I'm sorry, I'm still not sure I'm

12 understanding the question.  So are you asking me why

13 in the wintertime we would disconnect service?

14        Q.   Yeah.

15        A.   There is no seasons.  If we don't have a

16 customer of record and there's not a Landlord

17 Agreement on file, then the Company perceived policy

18 and practice is to disconnect service.

19        Q.   And still on Page 5 of your testimony at

20 line 18, you say that "When a customer contacts Ohio

21 Edison for service, our system generates a work order

22 for the meter to be unblocked which is essentially a

23 move-in."  Just to confirm, Ohio Edison was not being

24 asked to establish electric service at this property

25 for the first time, correct?
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1        A.   When you say for the first time, do you

2 mean for a meter installed, no prior service being

3 here?

4        Q.   Correct.

5        A.   That's correct.

6        Q.   So this wasn't a new service in the sense

7 that service had never been provided before but just

8 new for Mr. Enyart; is that fair?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Go to Page 6 of your testimony.

11        A.   Okay.

12        Q.   I'm actually -- Well, if we start at line

13 1 through 12, you testified that Ohio Edison never

14 disconnected power and then you talk about some of

15 the records you reviewed, and I would like to look at

16 some of those records.  So if you could go to the

17 page marked Ohio Edison Exhibit 3 -- I'm sorry, it's

18 Bates stamped Ohio Edison 03 and it should be the

19 document marked OE2 -- OE Exhibit 2.

20        A.   That has the OE000001 in the bottom

21 right-hand corner?

22        Q.   Yes.  And do you also have Pages 2 and 3?

23             THE EXAMINER:  Same document.

24        A.   Yes.

25        Q.   Okay.  If we go to Page 2 of Exhibit 2,
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1 there is a notation on February 1st, 2018 roughly in

2 the middle of the page, that 135236 --

3        A.   Yes, I see that.

4        Q.   -- with some notes, and I won't try to

5 read the notes.  I know they're somewhat abbreviated,

6 but part of the notation indicates this meter is not

7 blocked.  Do you see that?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   And this meter means the meter associated

10 with Account No. ending in 909, correct?

11        A.   Correct.

12        Q.   And that would be meter UB, correct?

13        A.   Correct.

14        Q.   Now, if we go to the pages marked at the

15 bottom OE, a bunch of zeros, 4 and 5 which is OE

16 Exhibit 3 --

17        A.   Yeah, I have that as well.

18        Q.   -- okay, Exhibit 3 are Account Records

19 for meter U1, correct?  I think we established that

20 earlier.

21        A.   Yes, U1, yes.

22        Q.   There are no notations in Exhibit OE3

23 about the meter being blocked or not, correct?

24        A.   Correct.

25        Q.   Now, if we go back to Exhibit 2, OE
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1 Exhibit 2.

2        A.   Okay.

3        Q.   I guess at the top of Page 3 and bottom

4 of Page 2, I'm sort of looking at these in reverse,

5 reverse chronological order, but the notation at the

6 bottom of Page 2 seems to indicate that a

7 disconnection had occurred at the property.

8             MR. DORINGO:  Objection.  I don't think

9 that's a question.  Sorry.  Go ahead, Mark.

10        Q.   (By Mr. Whitt) I guess my question is I'm

11 not sure what the notation means at the very bottom

12 of Page Bate stamp 2, the entry on February 1st, 2018

13 at 13:10:46.  There appear to be some notes about a

14 disconnection, and I'm wondering if you could help us

15 interpret this.

16        A.   That is an order that a supervisor

17 processed to reverse the original order to reenter an

18 order based upon the customer advising us that the

19 service was turned off.

20        Q.   Okay.  Where it says, "Activity:  Reverse

21 reconnection order," does that mean the same thing as

22 disconnect?

23        A.   No, they were just reversing the

24 reconnect order, the move-in order for Mr. Enyart in

25 order to process a new order based on him saying the
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1 service was off because you can't have the two

2 reconnect orders pending at the same time.

3        Q.   If we go up, there's another entry on

4 February 1st, 2018, several lines here, but I'm

5 looking at a line that begins "Super" -- looks like

6 an abbreviation for "Supervisor Jeff B.-assisting

7 with DTRT process."  Do you see that?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   The note continues, "... generating same

10 day order customers confirmed meter NBR still yellow

11 tag despite unblock order saying worked 1-29."  My

12 first question is does NBR mean not being read?

13        A.   No, that's an abbreviation for number.

14        Q.   Okay.  Still yellow tag, what is the

15 significance of a meter being yellow tagged?

16        A.   The tags are what's used in the meter

17 services, and I apologize, I don't have all of the

18 details of which colors that they use.  In this

19 contact note in my opinion, the supervisor is saying

20 that the customer told him that it had a yellow tag.

21        Q.   Did you ever talk to Jeff B., whoever

22 that is?

23        A.   No, I did not.

24        Q.   Did you ever talk with Dennyelle Kenee?

25        A.   No, I didn't.
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1        Q.   Did you talk with any of the individuals

2 listed in the Customer Contact History, OE Exhibits 2

3 and 3 as part of your investigation in this case?

4        A.   No, I did not.

5        Q.   If we go to the page stamped at the

6 bottom OE6, this would be Ohio Edison Exhibit 4.

7        A.   I do have that.

8        Q.   This document suggests that on 1-26-2018

9 there was a meter reading taken and another reading

10 taken on 1-29-2018; do you see that?

11        A.   I see the readings that are entered,

12 however, they do not indicate that actual reads were

13 taken on the 26th.  That's an estimated reading.

14        Q.   Is that what Code O3 means?

15        A.   The Code 13 under Meter Reading Type

16 which is the fifth column over, the 13 indicates that

17 it's an estimated reading.

18        Q.   Okay.  But based on the meter reading

19 shown here between the estimate and the actual, it

20 appears there is some difference there, correct?

21        A.   Correct.

22             MR. WHITT:  Thank you.  Those are all my

23 questions.

24             THE EXAMINER:  Is there any redirect?

25             MR. DORINGO:  I think just one question.
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1                         - - -

2                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

3 By Mr. Doringo:

4        Q.   Hi again, Miss Davis.

5        A.   Hello.

6        Q.   I think it was a little unclear, at least

7 as I was listening to your testimony.  Was service

8 between January 26th of 2019 -- I'm sorry, 2018 and

9 February 1st of 2018, was service ever disconnected

10 from either of the meters on Mr. Enyart's account at

11 the property?

12        A.   No.

13             MR. DORINGO:  That's all I have.

14             MR. WHITT:  Can I have a follow-up

15 question?

16             THE EXAMINER:  You may.

17                         - - -

18                  RECROSS-EXAMINATION

19 By Mr. Whitt:

20        Q.   Miss Davis, have you talked to any of the

21 Ohio Edison field personnel that may have been

22 present at 50 Newton Street between January 25th and

23 February 1st, 2018?

24        A.   You're asking if I spoke with them

25 directly?



Proceedings

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

142

1        Q.   Yes, about this case and about the

2 circumstances at issue in the case.

3        A.   I cannot be sure.  I know that we've had

4 a lot of e-mails, back and forth conversations, you

5 know, in clarifying orders and order types, but I

6 can't say specifically I've talked to them on the

7 phone specifically.

8             MR. WHITT:  I asked for one question, so

9 I'm going to limit myself to one.  Thank you.

10             THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.

11                         - - -

12                      EXAMINATION

13 By The Examiner:

14        Q.   Miss Davis, I have a question for you.  I

15 may only have one.  Is service being disconnected the

16 same as service being blocked?

17        A.   Physically disconnected, yes.

18        Q.   So it is your testimony that at no time

19 between January 26th, 2018 and February the 1st,

20 2018 -- shoot, this is why I'm not one of the

21 attorneys.  So it's your testimony that between those

22 two dates service was never blocked?

23        A.   That's correct.

24             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you --

25             THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.
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1             THE EXAMINER:  -- very much for your

2 testimony today.

3             THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.

4             THE EXAMINER:  I believe Mr. Schmidt will

5 be demoting you back to Attendee level, but thank you

6 very much for your testimony.

7             THE WITNESS:  You're welcome.  Have a

8 good day.

9             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  Mr. Doringo, this

10 is your witness, and I think we have a pending motion

11 to move Ohio Edison Exhibit 1.  Mr. Whitt, do you

12 have any objections?

13             MR. WHITT:  No objection to the admission

14 of --

15             THE EXAMINER:  We're just talking about

16 OE1 now.

17             MR. WHITT:  I was going to give you the

18 whole list.

19             THE EXAMINER:  No, one at a time.

20             MR. WHITT:  No objection to 1, 2, 4, 6 or

21 7 which I think were all the ones offered.

22             THE EXAMINER:  Hold on just a second.  2,

23 4, 6 and 7 have already been admitted.  You have no

24 objection to OE-1.  It will also be admitted.

25             (EXHIBIT ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)
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1             MR. DORINGO:  Your Honor, just for maybe

2 to make the record clearer and the documents clear

3 and evidence, I would also just go ahead and move 3

4 and 5 in now.  We just simply went through those with

5 Miss Davis.  It might be helpful to have them broken

6 out since we talked about them

7             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.  That was going

8 to be my next question.  So Ohio Edison Exhibit 3, I

9 don't know that that was ever officially marked, so

10 let's go ahead and do that.  Ohio Edison Exhibit 3 is

11 the Customer Contact History for U1 Bate stamped OE4

12 and 5.

13             MR. DORINGO:  That's correct.

14             MR. WHITT:  No objection to those.

15             THE EXAMINER:  Assuming there's no

16 objection, Mr. Whitt?

17             MR. WHITT:  No objection.

18             THE EXAMINER:  All right.  That is marked

19 and admitted.

20             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AND

21 ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

22             THE EXAMINER:  The other outlier was OE

23 premarked Ohio Edison Exhibit 5, Meter Reading

24 Results for meter U1 Bate stamped OE7.

25             MR. WHITT:  Correct, no objection to
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1 that.

2             THE EXAMINER:  Okay.  That will also be

3 marked and admitted.

4             (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AND

5 ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

6             THE EXAMINER:  Let's go off the record

7 for half a minute.

8             (Off the record.)

9             THE EXAMINER:  Let's go back on the

10 record.  All right.  Off the record we had a quick

11 discussion about briefing dates.  First, Mr. Doringo,

12 are you completed with the presentation of your case?

13             MR. DORINGO:  Yes, I am.  Thank you, your

14 Honor.

15             THE EXAMINER:  Thank you.  The parties

16 have completed their case.  Next step is briefing.

17 Simultaneous filing is the word I was looking for, we

18 will have simultaneous filing of our initial briefs

19 on June the 2nd with post hearing reply briefs due on

20 June the 18th.

21             Anything else for the record?  Hearing

22 and seeing none, I will just thank everyone for their

23 participation today.  It's been fun.  We are

24 adjourned.  Have a good day.

25             MR. WHITT:  Yeah, thank you, Mr. Schmidt,
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1 for going above and beyond on those audio files.

2 That was a big help.

3             THE EXAMINER:  I second that completely.

4             (The hearing was concluded at 3:19 p.m.)

5                         - - -
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